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Chairman’s Statement

SERWMES

In 2016, affected by uncertainties, the global economy managed only
overall average performance. As for our two core markets, China, with
her economy adjusting to the “new norm”, recorded a decrease in gross
domestic product growth from 6.9% in 2015 to 6.7% in 2016, and the
GDP growth of Vietnam was also down from 6.7% in 2015 to 6.2% in
2016, dampened by the weak performance of the agricultural, mining

and petroleum sectors during the year.

In 2016, China took the supply-side reform of her agri-food sector
to a greater depth, putting more emphasis on quality, efficiency and
competitiveness. Efforts were made on lifting quality and productivity,
reducing overcapacity, cutting excess inventory, lowering production
cost, strengthening weak areas, etc. The feed sector is in a new era
facing a more competitive market with consolidation hastening.
Against this backdrop, it is more and more important that agri-food
enterprises know how to use innovative technologies to help them
boost productivity, reduce costs and deliver differentiated services
that can help increase customer stickiness. In Vietnam, natural
disasters, including drought and salt water intrusion, have had
widespread impact on her agri-food industry. Wanting to adapt to
extreme weather changes and enhance the productivity of the entire
agri-food chain, recent hot topics of the industry are the needs to
improve product quality, adopt advanced technologies and scale-up
production. C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
values research and development, stresses on using innovative
technologies and continues to increase production efficiency. The
Group strives to provide high-quality products and value-added

services to customers.

While China and Vietnam focus more on environmental protection,
governments are introducing stricter environmental protection
and anti-pollution regulations to keep industry development in
check. In this current industry environment, green production and
sustainable development have become the trend to follow. Many
multinational enterprises have integrated environment protection
and sustainable development into their corporate culture, making
big strides on energy conservation and emission reduction and
striving to nip the problem in the bud — thereby aiming to ensure
high-standard and efficient product supply, product safety and
friendliness to the environment all at the same time. To align with
the livestock farming industry taking on a new and more rational
structure and heeding ecological requirements, agricultural enterprises
have continued to transform and upgrade their practices, pushing to
realise ecological livestock farming. As the Group has long abided by
stringent requirements on environmental protection, it will be able
to effectively grasp the opportunities arising as China and Vietnam

continue to push for modernisation and large-scale farming.
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Aspiring to become “The Kitchen of the World”, the Group has been
dedicated to building an operation that covers the entire agri-food
value chain, allowing assurance of food safety right where it all begins.
Consumers’ increasingly sophisticated demand gives enterprises
an environment conducive to business development. Developing
countries are seeing their traditional industries advance towards mid-
to high-end production, and that accordingly commands the industry
to streamline and tighten its operating and management mechanisms.
The Group always embraces innovation and high operating standards,
and is dedicated to creating sustainable value. In addition, the
favourable external environment will see the Group’s “safe and
delicious” agri-food business achieve continuous growth. The Group
has years of industry experience and possesses advanced technologies,
together with effective integration of external and internal resources,
as well as development plans and customer needs, the Group aims to

fortify its competitiveness and maintain its market leadership.

Looking at 2017, the Group would adapt to the new environment,
leverage its advantages, embrace changes and persist with innovation

so as to maintain its premium standing in the agri-food industry.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all members in
our team for their efforts and contributions to the Group in the past
year. My gratitude also goes to our shareholders for their unwavering

trust and support over the years.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 February 2017
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Financial Highlights
BEE

(Unit: US$ million) (HApr : F#FET) 2016 2015
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEE2HKHEREE
Revenue WA 5,281 5,130
Gross Profit EH 933 904
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company Al Ak 43 T T AR 2 ) e R 22 Y 260 268
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents)* B B L A J B o g A (ZEAl) = 1.027 1.056
Total Cash Dividend Per Share (HK cents) B4 S (Al 4.0 3.8
Interim Cash Dividend Per Share (HK cents) B B 0 B4 e L (WAl 2.4 1.7
Final Cash Dividend Per Share (HK cents) FRARMB R (HA) 1.6 2.1
Special Interim Dividend by Way of Distribution in Specie & #% B ¥ 4> Yk = 4% 51 v 3 it B, - 151
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEBERNEEA
Property, Plant & Equipment L ER G &L ] 1,399 1,182
Total Assets % 3,633 3,128
Total Bank Borrowings & Corporate Bond HERIT S A B 5 1,424 1,103
Issued Capital BT R AR 253 253
Shareholders’ Equity JIE A R A 1,124 1,086
Total Equity HE 25 A8 A 1,419 1,316
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
WA B8ET EF BBET
6,000 - s a0 5,281 1,000 ~ 904 933
800 -
4,000 -
600 -
400 -
2,000 A
200 -
0 0
2015 2016 2015 2016
Profit Attributable US$ million Dividend  HK cents
to Shareholders HEZXET Per Share (|
of the Company _ BREE _
THAWF O 268 260 >0 a0
ARATRR 40 - 3.8 =
-l i
20 30 A
20 -
100 +
1.0 -+
2015 2016 0 2015 2016

Remarks f# & :
* Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares in issue during the year

A2 T e R AN A i ) > T ACAR 9 TR AT T B B T 40 M 8 S P 2 o T 3 A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s revenue increased
3.0% to US$5,281 million (2015: US$5,130 million). Agri-food
business in China contributed 57.5% of the Group’s revenue while
agri-food business in Vietnam contributed 42.5% of the Group’s
revenue. Overall gross margin for the year was 17.7% (2015: 17.6%).

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders decreased 2.7% to
US$260 million (2015: US$268 million).

discontinued operations (please refer to “Discontinued Operations” in

Excluding profit from

note 39 to the financial statements of the annual report) in 2015, the
Group’s profit attributable to shareholders from continuing operations

reported a 7.3% growth compared to 2015.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 1.027 cents (2015:
US 1.056 cents). The board has proposed a final dividend per share
(“DPS”) of HK$0.016. Including the interim DPS of HK$0.024, total
DPS in 2016 was HK$0.040 (2015: HK$0.038).

—

V|etnam %;tgz_féw 42 50/0 %\L&K

5,281

US$ million
BEXETT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-food Business in China

The Group announced in late 2012 its entry into the food business in
China. The first phase of our food processing plant in Qinhuangdao
commenced partial commercial production in late 2015 and our
food processing plant in Qingdao commenced partial commercial
production in late 2016. In 2016, feed business accounted for 95.5%
of agri-food business revenue in China while food business contributed

the remaining 4.5%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

China’s overall economic growth remains moderate. According to
the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, the country’s gross
domestic product growth was 6.7% in 2016 compared to 6.9% in 2015.
In the market place, while swine prices were favourable during the
year, swine inventory generally remained at low levels. With stricter
environmental and other requirements, the commercial segment fared

better and especially the larger players.

With a focus on the commercial segment and, in particular, large-
scale farms, the Group’s China feed sales volume increased 10.4% to
6.07 million tons. However, feed revenue declined 4.4% to US$2,899
million as a result of lower average selling prices reflecting lower raw
material costs. Gross profit margin for the Group’s China agri-food
business was at 17.8% in 2016 compared to 18.7% in 2015.

Swine feed continued to be the largest component in the Group’s
China feed business segment, accounting for 50.2% of revenue from
this segment in 2016. Poultry feed, aqua feed, and other feed products
and premix contributed 29.1%, 8.6%, 6.2% and 5.9%, respectively.
The Group’s swine feed sales volume in 2016 increased by 18.4% to
3.00 million tons, mainly due to increased sales to large-scale farms.
Despite lower raw material prices bringing down average selling prices,
swine feed revenue increased 1.6% to US$1,454 million. Similarly,
mainly due to increased sales to commercial players, poultry sales
volume increased by 8.2% to 2.12 million tons; revenue dropped by
8.2% to US$845 million, again, due to lower average selling prices
reflecting lower raw material costs. Sales volume of aqua feed dropped
by 6.0% to 0.38 million tons whilst revenue declined by 13.6% to

US$248 million, mainly due to unfavourable weather conditions.

Premix

A H
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B RS S > BN b N A AR
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Agri-food Business in Vietham

Economic growth in Vietnam also remains moderate. According to
the General Statistics Office of Vietnam, gross domestic product
growth was 6.2% in 2016 compared to 6.7% in 2015. In the agri-
food industry, swine prices were favourable in the first nine months
of the year, benefitting farming players in general. However, swine
prices started to drop dramatically since October 2016, impacting our
business in the last three months of the year. Meanwhile, similar to
the situation in China, lower raw material costs compared to 2015

resulted in lower average selling prices for our feed products.

Overall, revenue of the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam
increased 7.2% to US$2,246 million. Feed business accounted
for 39.1% of the Group’s Vietnam revenue, while farm and food
businesses combined accounted for the remaining 60.9%. Overall
gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam was
17.4% in 2016 compared to 16.1% in 2015.

A

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

HERRRERER
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Feed

In 2016, the Group recorded robust feed sales volume growth in
Vietnam. Total feed sales volume in Vietnam was 1.94 million tons,
an increase of 19.3% compared to 2015. However, lower raw material
costs resulted in lower average feed selling prices. Revenue of the
Group’s feed business in Vietnam increased by 5.6% to US$878
million. Swine, poultry, aqua and other feed products accounted for
58.9%, 22.0%, 18.0% and 1.1%, respectively.

B AR

A H

kS

TR N > AR [E 0 R A R B B R R R
18t o B T A A R OB SE B B R A 1048 W R
—FHAE EFF19.3% o SR > BAK 1Y J5 A4 BHE % 4 7
3k 4 B AR A R B o AK A [ R 2 T M
A EF5.6%ES.78MMFEIC > Ko fs - KB~ KEK
e Rk A 5 20 046 58.9% ~ 22.0% ~ 18.0% % 1.1%

Aqua Feed
7K B i B

18.0% —

1 1 [0} / Other Feed Products
= 1 70 oAb Rz it

Breakdown of Vietham

Feed Revenue

R R U A BA 4

Poultry Feed
ERE

22.0% —

Farm and Food

Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food businesses in
Vietnam was US$1,368 million, an 8.2% increase from the previous
year. Swine farming continues to be the major revenue contributor
of this business segment. In the first nine months of the year, average
swine prices were approximately 5% higher than the same period in
2015. This factor along with improved farming efficiency led to solid
results for this business segment in the first three quarters of 2016.
However, swine prices in the last three months of 2016 dropped
dramatically by approximately 15% compared to the same period last
year. A negative change in fair value of biological assets of US$49
million was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2016 or US$33 million
for the full year. Consequently, the performance of this segment in the
last three months of 2016 was adversely affected.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead into 2017, uncertainties in global economy are
expected to weigh-in on economic growth around the world. Animal
protein prices in both of our operating markets — China and Vietnam
— have also started to regress. The market condition in the fourth
quarter of 2016 is expected to extend into 2017. Overall, we maintain
a cautious outlook for 2017.
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BEKEM

LT R M R I R A R AR B TF82%E
13,6848 R T o A 7% 1% 7 A A 2 L S8 5 W A I e T L
B SY o AR BEIULAE A P 3 A R A R R A
W8 ETR25% > I B AR RCR B > AREHR R
—ANEE ST SR GREER  Aif s —F A
AR SR AR = T W R R M R A TR YT BT A
15% > b 3 — N AR 58 DU 2 A ¥ A Ao fE
BB R 14,9008 %70 > &4AE 2 £3,3004 550 »
PR T Rl R N R R =AMk
B o

RE

J B LR > B A BRI O A A A
B BRERACH Y R o B B R AR AN Y
T 355 B0 455 v I A B g 8 B R B9 o T R N AR AR
VY 2B UL O R A R F LA o M
o RME R LE R RSB

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

-2 —

N FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total assets of US$3,633.4
million, representing an increase of 16.2% as compared to US$3,127.9
million as at 31 December 2015.

Net debt (31 December 2016: US$962.6 million, 31 December 2015:
US$559.1 million) to equity ratio (defined as total bank borrowings
and corporate bond minus cash and deposits divided by total equity)
was 0.68 as compared to 0.42 as at 31 December 2015.

The borrowings of the Group are denominated in U.S. dollars (“US$”)
(31 December 2016: US$789.8 million, 31 December 2015: US$587.5
million), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December 2016: US$229.7
million, 31 December 2015: US$376.4 million) and Renminbi
(“RMB”) (31 December 2016: US$404.1 million, 31 December 2015:
US$139.2 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current portion of long-
term borrowings amounted to US$66.1 million (31 December 2015:
US$138.1 million) and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to

US$203.7 million (31 December 2015: US$43.1 million).

All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam are transacted
in RMB and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in
foreign currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of
certain raw materials, equipment, etc. The Group monitors foreign
exchange movements and determines appropriate hedging activities
when necessary. During the year, the Group has entered into forward
exchange contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures of US$
denominated liabilities against RMB and VND. As at 31 December
2016, the aggregate notional principal amount of these outstanding
derivative financial instruments for US$ against RMB and VND were
US$161.1 million and US$27.7 million, respectively.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$420.0
million as at 31 December 2016, a decrease of US$75.1 million as
compared to US$495.1 million as at 31 December 2015.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, out of the total borrowings of US$1,423.6
million (31 December 2015: US$1,103.1 million) obtained by the
Group, US$113.5 million (31 December 2015: US$54.3 million)
was secured and accounted for 8.0% (31 December 2015: 4.9%)
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and land lease prepayments with an aggregate net
book value of US$102.8 million (31 December 2015: land lease
prepayments with an aggregate net book value of US$11.7 million)
were pledged as security.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided which exceed the net asset value of the
relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent liabilities are limited
to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of
the relevant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 was approximately
US$85.8 million (31 December 2015: US$91.0 million). The
contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees as
at 31 December 2016 were US$30.9 million (31 December 2015:
US$50.2 million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s biological assets amounted
to US$383.8 million (2015: US$348.7 million). The change in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2016 of
US$35.1 million (2015: US$5.6 million) was mainly attributable to
(i) increase due to purchases/raising of biological assets of US$1,002.7
million (2015: US$922.0 million), and (ii) decrease due to sales of
biological assets of US$872.2 million (2015: US$837.7 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a
negative net change in fair value of biological assets of US$33.0
million (2015: positive net change of US$7.0 million), mainly due to
decrease in selling price of swine.

We have complied with relevant laws and regulations and have
obtained the requisite licenses and permits for carrying out our
farming business from relevant regulatory authorities, including the
Investment Certificate issued by the Management Board of Dong Nai
Industrial Zone in Vietnam.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held, nor material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed around 32,000
employees in the PRC, Vietnam and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing market rates while performance bonuses are granted on
a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example,
medical insurance and training.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO

. LTD.

b E B EFER

A

Corporate Governance Report

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance, the principles
of which are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company complied with all code provisions set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) — Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises fifteen directors including
eight executive directors, two non-executive directors and five

independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of all directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) and the relationships among Directors and
senior management are set out in the Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management section on pages 32 to 37 of

the annual report.

(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is Chairman of the Group.
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg are the
Chief Executive Officers of China area and Vietnam area
respectively. The roles of chairman and chief executives are
distinct and separate with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the
Board while the Chief Executive Officers are responsible for

managing the Group’s business.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

(c)

(d)

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, including through its committees, leads and
provides direction for management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation by management, reviews
the operational and financial performance, provides oversight
to ensure that a sound system of risk management and internal
control is in place, and performs corporate governance

functions.

Management is responsible for the execution of business

strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’

liability insurance for its Directors and officers.
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise and the number of independent

non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and meet the independence

guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

(e)

(f)

(9)

b E B EFER

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule —
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), as the code of conduct for dealings
in the Company’s securities by its Directors. Having made
specific enquiries with each of the Directors, all of them have
confirmed that they complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2016.

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations are disclosed in the Report of the Directors

section of the annual report on pages 48 to 49.
Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of his or her responsibilities as
a director of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During the year, the Company
provided trainings on the Listing Rules and monthly updates
on the Company’s financial performance and financial position

to all Directors.

General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company held
one annual general meeting, one special general meeting,
eleven Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one
Remuneration Committee meeting and one Nomination

Committee meeting.

Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and attention
to performing their duties and responsibilities. According
to the bye-laws of the Company, Directors can attend board
meetings in person or by means of a conference telephone or

similar communications equipment.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE
General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board (99 BRAE EEZEREZTEBETHNEZEESE
Committee Meetings (continued) = (8|)
The attendance of each Director, by name, in 2016 is set out TERALIBEBMERER FNERBE
in the following table: K
No. of meetings attended/held
LS VA FLIibe
Annual Special Corporate
General General Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Governance
Meeting Meeting Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
R Bt #H #H R’ bEER
ke Wike wHE L 04 ZHf ZH6
Executive Directors AlEF
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman) ~ #f B R264: (F$R) 11 01 10111 - - 11 -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak itk 11 il 1 - 1l 11 -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont AE Ak Wi 0n 111 - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont HHC ks 0n 01 1M - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HERES 01 0 111 - - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jumjaiswanglerg i ot Vi 111 - - - -
Mr. Anan Athigapanich BER A 0l o 1011 - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® 1: W) 0 1 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FAGEF
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont EgY 3t Wit 01 911 2 - -
Mr. Yoichi Tkezoe b4 in i 111 - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BLFifiEE
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung R A 1l il 11 0N 1l Il 00
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isres 1 il 111 2 I 1 00
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul & 11 0 10/11 i Il 11 00
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgamvej 6 4: 11 01 1111 - - - -
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon % £: 11 01 1111 - - - -
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(h)

b E B E R 2

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section on pages 63 and 71 of the annual

report.

The Board considers that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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N4 B AR & F
Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE
BOARD DELEGATION EEERE

The Board has delegated authority to four committees which operate ¥ 5% € % T % HE IU {fl &2 B € 32 18 4% 2 W4 Bk WE 90 1)
under defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the #HfE > IRZLZTEH - HMEEB GMBFZLE B & oI5
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit HERE CHRAARAA T - BELAREEHRAR_-F
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The attendance  —N4ERHER AL LA RN HE22H -

of each committee member, by name, in 2016 is set out on page 22.
(i) Nomination Committee (i)

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (Chairman) and
Mr. Adirek Sripratak, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, Mr. Sombat
Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibility to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individual(s) nominated for directorship and assess the

independence of independent non-executive Directors.

According to the board diversity policy of the Company,
selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
considerations, which include but are not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Company’s corporate
strategy and organisational needs are also taken into account.

Board appointments are based on meritocracy.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and,
together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement by
rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting of the Company no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall be subject to retirement by

rotation at least once every three years.
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year

to consider the nomination of Mr. Yu Jianping as an executive

director of the Company and review the Board composition.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

(i)

(iii)

b E B EFER

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu
Cheung (Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda

Thanitcul, and an executive Director, Mr. Adirek Sripratak.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board with
primary responsibility to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure for all directors and
senior management and determine the remuneration packages

of individual executive directors and senior management.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the success
of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the Company
to shareholders. The objective of the Company’s remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based on

business requirements and industry practices.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year to determine remuneration packages for the Directors and

senior management.

Details of emoluments of each Director are set out in note
10 to the financial statements of the annual report. The
remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

»
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¥yMEES

FMZEB BB E AR ERNE
WA () > Sombat Deo—isresst 42 I
Sakda Thanitcul 5624 I 17 28 25 6 S Ak
Ff 0L o
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B v A4 BN LR 2 8 97 T 1B SR B A6 1)
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BN RS ABRBZHMEENT ¢

(HK$) Number of Senior Management
(#7C) L3 VN=PN
0 to 3,000,000 0%3,000,000 1
3,000,001 to 6,000,000 3,000,001%6,000,000 1
Corporate Governance Committee (i) EREARZEER

AN E R ZFNENH +— H oL A

The Company established the Corporate Governance
Committee on 11 August 2016. The Corporate Governance
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (Chairman),
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

(iif)

(iv)

Corporate Governance Committee (continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board with the primary responsibility to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees and
directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
(Chairman), Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

and a non-executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with primary
responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties including support
from the Internal Audit Department, the external auditors
and management in reviewing the Group’s financial results,

material financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. The
following is a summary of work of the Audit Committee in
2016:

o reviewed the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2015

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

° reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2015;

o reviewed compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code;

B AR
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(iii)

(iv)
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(iv)

b E B E R 2 A

Audit Committee (continued) (iv)
o reviewed internal audit reports of the Group;
o reviewed the interim report and the interim results

announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2016

with recommendation to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditors to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June
2016;

° reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditors; and

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2016 with recommendation to the

Board for approval.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors. To ensure external auditors’ independence, the
Audit Committee reviewed the audit and non-audit services

undertaken by the external auditors during the year.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid by the

Group to the external auditors is set out below:
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e L

(US$’000)

Category of Services IR %5 %8 53 (FxLTFiL)

Audit services TR 1,168
Review engagements and FHEW R

agreed—upon procedures AT E R 319

1,487

Other services At IR %5 55

Total ik 1,542
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TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a risk management policy
which is designed to manage the risks of failure associated with the
Group to achieve its business objectives and provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. A
risk appetite statement has been established to define the extent of
risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its strategies and

business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different level
of management within the Group. The Board (i) has overall
responsibility for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems; (ii) oversees the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems and (iii) evaluates
and determines the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The Board delegates
the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to the Audit Committee
which monitors the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through the Internal Audit Department. The Internal Audit
Department carries out independent reviews of key business processes
and controls. Key findings and recommendations for improvement
are regularly reported to the Audit Committee. The external auditors
also report on any control issues identified in the course of their audit
or review work to the Audit Committee. Management is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring risk management and
internal control systems, whereas risk owners are responsible for
identifying, analyzing and prioritizing risk for further consideration
by management, and ensuring that the risk monitoring and control
system are working effectively and risk mitigation actions are

implemented within business units.
Effectiveness Review

During the year, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board,
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and was satisfied that the Company’s internal
control processes are adequate to meet the business needs of the
Company. The Board considers that the risk management and internal

control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Continuous Improvement

We are committed to continually improving our risk management
and internal control framework and shall continue to enhance the
integration of risk management and internal control into our business

process.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information and, where required, communicate with the

Group’s stakeholders in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 48, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special
general meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time
to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company can submit a written requisition to the Board for convening

a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10

business days) shall be given to all members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than
one hundred members can submit a written requisition to the Board

for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting

and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company by not less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or by not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a

director are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholder in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

These publications are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to the

Company’s constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEANEBESFS

Mzr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 77, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 1988. He was appointed as Executive Chairman
of the Company in 2005 and this title was subsequently changed
to Chairman with effect from February 2010. Mr. Chearavanont
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company in April 2012. Mr. Chearavanont is also the Senior
Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited (“Charoen
Pokphand Group”). He has extensive experience in establishing
and operating businesses in Asia, Europe and USA. He also holds
directorship in a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is
also the chairman of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”), True Corporation Public Company Limited (“True
Corporation”) and CP ALL Public Company Limited (“CP ALL”)
(companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand).

Mr. Adirek Sripratak, aged 70, has been a Vice Chairman of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company since April 2012. Mr.
Sripratak has been Chairman of the Executive Committee of CPF
since March 2017. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of CPF
and of the Company. Mr. Sripratak is also a director of CP ALL and
Siam Makro Public Company Limited (“Siam Makro”), companies
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. He has more than 40
years’ experience in the agri-business and food industry. His valuable
experience is widely recognised and has led to his appointment to a
number of public offices and positions. His public service experiences
include served as a Senator of the National Assembly of Thailand,
the Honorary Chairman of the Thai Broiler Processing Exporters
Association and an Honorary Director of Chiang Mai University
Council. He received Honorary Doctorates from a number of
universities in Thailand including Maejo University, Mae Fah Luang
University, Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi,
Chiang Mai University, Rajamangala University of Technology Isan

and Kasetsart University.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mzr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2005 and a Vice Chairman since February 2010.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA and has
extensive multinational investment and management experience
in various industries. He also holds directorship in a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Chearavanont is also the Chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group, C.P. Lotus Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”, listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited (“CTEI”, listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) and True Visions Public Company Limited (“True
Visions”). He is also a director of True Corporation, CP ALL and
Siam Makro and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr.
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a

Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 49, has been an Executive

Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Boston
University in USA, majored in Financial Management. He has
extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also the Chief Executive Officer
(Telecommunications) of Charoen Pokphand Group, an executive
director of C.P. Lotus and a director of Siam Makro. He is also a
director, president and chief executive officer of True Corporation
and a director and chief executive officer of True Visions and True

Move Company Limited.

Mr. Bai Shanlin, aged 57, was appointed as Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer (Feed Division) of the Company in
February 2010. His title was changed to Chief Executive Officer
(China Area) with effect from April 2012. Mr. Bai obtained
a Professional Diploma in Animal Science, Gansu College of
Animal Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist in
Agricultural Management from the Australian Ministry of Foreign
Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in Livestock Management in
the PRC. He joined the Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991. He
is currently a senior executive of the Group, responsible for the
operation of our agri-food business in Xinjiang, Ningxia, Gansu,
Shaanxi, Shanxi, Neimenggu, Heilongjiang, Jilin and Liaoning.
Mr. Bai has extensive experience in the management of agri-business
operations. He is also a part time professor honored by Agricultural
University of Gansu and People’s University of China. Mr. Bai also

holds directorships in several companies within the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 64, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since October 2011 and Chief Executive
Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since April 2012.
Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg is also a senior executive of CPF. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg has over 30 years of experience in animal feed sales
and breeding, having been with Charoen Pokphand Group since 1980.
Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds directorships in several companies
within the Group. He graduated from the University of the Thai

Chamber of Commerce with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 68, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2012. Mrs. Watcharananan has
been an Executive Director of CPF since 2000 and is also a director
of several subsidiaries of CPF. She graduated from Thammasat

University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.

Mr. Yu Jianping, aged 57, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in January 2017. Mr. Yu is currently a senior executive
of the Group, primarily responsible for research and development,
manufacture and sale of food products in China. He also holds
directorships in several companies within the Group. Mr. Yu has been
working for the Group since 1995. Mr. Yu received a Bachelor of
Science degree from the Faculty of Mathematics, Jilin University in
China in 1982 and a Master of Economics degree from the Graduate
School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in China in 1989.

Mzr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 58, was appointed an executive director
and Executive Vice Chairman of the Company in 2005, and was
re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company in
August 2010. Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA.
He has extensive experience in investment, finance, banking and
strategic business development in Asia and USA. Mr. Jiaravanont is
also an executive director of C.P. Lotus. He is currently the senior
executive assistant to the chairman-finance of Charoen Pokphand
Group and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglergf64: » 645% » H ~F——
ETHERERARZWTEREA R~ 4N
A HARAT BRI GBI © Jiumjaiswanglergd6 4
TN BCPFZ & FRATB B ° Jiumjaiswanglergds 42 B
H 83 04F B 15 85 By ) ) 2% i 25 5808 > B E — L\
FAEMAE DRI o Jiumjaiswanglergs 28 IR %
EARGEE S T A ZERIAL o 25 2R University
of the Thai Chamber of CommerceJ# 45 #% i £ 21 2
Br o

Arunee Watcharananan& 1= > 68 3% » H & — 4F
P9 A AT B A 2 W] Z $14T B o Watcharananan
LR ZFRFFEMUBCPFZ AT E S - M5 &
CPF# T M AR Z HE 4 o R 3E R % B Thammasat
University 8 5 £ 75 22 - 2 A) -

FRPEA S R B L BRER
AR AT o T e B 2 Ak 4 T 1) ¥ VR £
BN B o S o £ O - e R o
B A B B 26 2 A o e
U AR A S B T o T R — UL
A o B 7 bR kR A W R L A
U N IUAE R o B 2 A R
LB

MR > 588K R _EFEHEE R ARLF
ZHAGEFRPGAERR - R 2NN
ERARAFFRTEFRERERARAFAEFGRE
R E o #H a4 F5 I M Occidental CollegeZ
R 22 B A B K B New York UniversityZ 1.
(RN =X VAR Z R DS E 7 P S - I
SRAT o SR Wi e S 5 % e Uy I A VR AR B o A A
TRk DI 2 AT E S - MBI A IR 2 ¥
F R (M%) &% 4T B # X CPPC Public Company
LimitedZ & ¥ »

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

- -

N FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 57, was appointed as Non-executive Director
of the Company in October 2015. Mr. Ikezoe is also a non—executive
director of CTEIL. Mr. Ikezoe is currently Executive Officer, Vice
President of East Asia Bloc (South China), Senior Officer of ASEAN
and South West Asia Bloc of ITOCHU Corporation (a company
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and Managing Director of
ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited. Mr. lkezoe has been working for
ITOCHU Corporation (formerly known as C.ITOH & Co., Ltd.)
since 1983. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from the Faculty
of Foreign Studies, Osaka University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, aged 75, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 2005. He has been a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since 2006. Mr. Ma was also appointed
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in April 2012 and appointed
chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee in August 2016.
Mr. Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited
(formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited) and is presently
a director of Mayee Management Limited. He has more than 30
years’ experience in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance.
Mr. Ma received his bachelor’s degree in Economics from the London
School of Economics and Political Science (University of London)
in the United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. In addition
to his directorship in the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent
non-executive director of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, Chong Hing Bank
Limited and Asiaray Media Group Limited (companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Ma was previously an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited and Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited (companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Sombat Deo-isres, aged 75, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005. He has been a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since September 2005 and was also appointed a
member of the Nomination Committee in April 2012 and appointed
a member of the Corporate Governance Committee in August 2016.
Mr. Deo-isres obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Thammasat
University and a master’s degree in Laws from Chulalongkorn
University, Thailand. He held various senior positions with the Thai
judiciary. He a former Senior Judge of the Supreme Court of Thailand
and is currently a member of the academic justice committee of the

President of Supreme Court.

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul, aged 58, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since 2008. Mr. Thanitcul
was also appointed a member of the Nomination Committee in
April 2012 and appointed a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee in August 2016. Mr. Thanitcul holds a Bachelor of Law
degree from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, a Master of Law
degree from Kyoto University, Japan and University of Washington,
USA and a Doctor of Law degree from Kyoto University, Japan and
University of Washington, USA. He has extensive experience in the
legal field and specialises in competition law and the World Trade
Organization Agreements. Mr. Thanitcul was a former Dean and is
presently a Professor of Law at the Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn
University, Bangkok, Thailand.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 66, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December 2012. Mr.
Vittavasgarnvej obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and
a master’s degree in Political Science from Thammasat University,
Thailand. Currently, Mr. Vittavasgarnvej is the chairman of Sahamitr
Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. and independent director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Ekarat Engineering Public
Company Limited, companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Thailand. He was the Director General of The Treasury Department,
Ministry of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to 2011 and the Director
General of The Revenue Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand
from 2008 to 2010.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 64, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2013.
Mrs. Vimooktayon held various government positions in Thailand
since 1997 and retired from the position of Permanent Secretary of
the Ministry of Commerce in September 2013. Mrs. Vimooktayon
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration (Accounting)
from Thammasat University, Thailand, a bachelor’s degree in Laws
from Sukhothai Thammathirat University, Thailand and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from National Institute of

Development Administration, Thailand.

Mzr. Chang Bo Wai, Bobby, aged 47, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 2011. Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Engineering from Princeton University and a
Master of Science degree from Stanford University in the USA. He
has extensive international experience in management consulting,

investment as well as business and financial management.

Mr. Lau Wing Yuen, aged 51, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lau joined the Company in
2011. He holds a bachelor’s degree of Social Sciences from University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for an
international accounting firm and several listed companies in Hong

Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont.
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont and Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont are
brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek
Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan. Save
as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship among

members of the Board and senior management.
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Report of the Directors
EERFTE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The subsidiaries of
the Group are principally engaged, in the PRC, in the manufacture
and sale of animal feed products and value-added, processed food
products, and, in Vietnam, in (i) the manufacture and sale of animal
feed products, (ii) breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic
animals, and (iii) the manufacture and sale of value-added, processed

food products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement section on pages 2 to 3, Financial Highlights section on
page 12 and Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13

to 18 of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance and the key

relationships with stakeholders are set out below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the

first social, environmental and governance report to be issued.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are discussed below.

Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in

note 46 to the financial statements of the annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Volatility of Commodity Prices

Prices of farm products depend on the demand and supply as well
as the economic condition and consumer purchasing power and
confidence. When supply exceeds demand, there will be a negative
impact on the selling price of the farm products and in turn on the

performance of the Group.

On the other hand, the Group’s results may also be affected by price
volatility of the main ingredients used in the production of animal
feed, including corn, soybean meal, wheat and fish meal. These raw
materials are basic agricultural commodities and their prices are
affected by global commodity prices as well as domestic demand and
supply. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity prices information when

purchasing these raw materials.
Product Quality and Safety

Product quality and safety are the most important issues in agri-food
business. Failure to maintain quality control during the manufacturing
process may lead to poor quality products and result in complaints,
claims for compensation or product recalls, penalties and damage
to the Group’s reputation. The Group is committed to producing
high quality and safe products from its manufacturing process and
has traceability systems for raw materials used and quality assurance

systems throughout its supply chains.
Customer Demand and Preference

Customer demand for a particular kind of meat may change due to loss
of consumer confidence as a result of epidemic outbreak or a change
in consumer preference and taste. Also, as consumer’s purchasing
power increases, preference may also shift from low cost protein
sources to higher cost protein sources. A decline in demand for any
particular kind of meat will directly affect the sales of that meat, and
indirectly affect the demand for the associated feed products, as well
as the demand for the food products made from that meat. In order to
stay alert to customers’ demands and determine appropriate marketing
strategies, management continuously follows the behavioral change

and satisfaction of consumers.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Animal Disease Outbreaks

Any epidemic outbreaks in livestock, poultry or aquatic animals would
affect the selling prices of our products and the results of the Group.
The Group will continue to provide regular training to its employees
to obtain knowledge and understanding on diseases and outbreaks, as
well as continuously conduct surveillance, follow-up, data analysis and

communication of information on diseases and their outbreaks.
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s businesses are principally located in mainland China
and Vietnam. All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam
are transacted in RMB and VND respectively, whereas export sales
and import of raw materials, machinery and equipment are transacted
in foreign currencies. Also, certain subsidiaries in mainland China
and Vietnam have borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
Depreciation of RMB/VND against foreign currencies would result
in loss on translation of these foreign currencies denominated
borrowings and increased costs of imported raw materials, machinery
and equipment. Further, depreciation of RMB/VND against US$
would also adversely affect the reported results of the Group, as the
results of the subsidiaries in mainland China and Vietnam would
be reduced on translation from RMB/VND to US$, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The Group monitors foreign exchange
movements and would consider hedging when necessary. Please refer
to note 46(c) to the financial statements of the annual report for the

foreign currency risk exposures as at the end of the reporting period.
Interest Rate Fluctuation

The Group had total bank borrowings and corporate bond of
US$1,423.6 million as at 31 December 2016 and 86% of which
were at floating rate which subjects the Group to interest rate risk.
In the decision making for the selection of sources of capital, the
Group will consider various factors such as rate of return expected
by shareholders, current and expected interest rates in the market
and debt-to-equity ratio of the Group. Please refer to note 46(a) to
the financial statement of the annual report for the interest rate risk

exposures as at the end of the reporting period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance Risks

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam and are subject to different industry standards and
government regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards
and regulations include food hygiene and safety related laws and
regulations, environmental protection regulations, employment
regulations and relevant tax laws, etc. The Group’s internal legal
department ensures compliance with the laws, rules and regulations
applicable to the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation and minimizing our impact on the environment. As a
testament of our commitment to environmental protection, some of
our operations in China and Vietnam are certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, which reflects our stringent
environmental policies and objectives. We have adopted strict
measures to control the discharge of wastes and pollutants. We have
also implemented an array of energy saving measures to reduce costs
and energy consumption in our production processes. In 2016, there
was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant environmental

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

We also require our suppliers to operate in strict compliance with
relevant environmental regulations and rules. Their environmental

performances are evaluated on a regular basis.
Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

The Group regards its employees as one of its most important
assets. We strive to provide motivation and awards to employees
who demonstrate outstanding performance. Our employee benefits
include medical insurance, annual leaves, training, and discretionary
performance bonus. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with the national regulations on equal opportunity and

anti-discrimination.

We also place great importance in establishing a safe and healthy
work environment for our employees. In our operations, safety
trainings are offered to production staff. We have obtained OHSAS
18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems
certification in some of our food operations, which serves to
demonstrate our capability in managing the potential occupational

hazard in workplaces.
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EEREE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with products and services is key to our
success. The Group has set out rigorous procedures to ensure that
safe, nutritious, environmentally friendly products are produced and
delivered to our customers. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction,
the Group’s sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions.
With continuous feedback of our customers, we will continue to
improve our product and service qualities. The Group has a diversified
customer base with no single customer that contributed 10% or more

of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations.
Suppliers

We carefully choose suppliers that share the same commitment
to product quality and work ethics with us. In our procurement
process, we select our suppliers based on a number of assessment
criteria, including their service quality, environmental and social
performances, and ability to supply high-quality products on a
consistent basis. We also perform on-site inspections of suppliers as

and when necessary to ensure our requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2016 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 72 to 202 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.024 per share (equivalent to
approximately US 0.310 cents) was declared and paid during the year
under review (2015: HK$0.017 per share (equivalent to approximately
US 0.219 cents)).

The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend for 2016
of HK$0.016 (equivalent to approximately US 0.206 cents) (2015:
HK$0.021 (equivalent to approximately US 0.271 cents)) per share,
totaling approximately US$52,300,000 (2015: US$68,644,000)
(based on the total number of issued ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares as at the date of this report). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 8 June 2017, the final dividend will be
paid on 28 June 2017 to the ordinary share holders and convertible
preference share holders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on 16 June 2017.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
7 June 2017 to 8 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2017.

In addition, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 15 June 2017 to 16 June 2017, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend for 2016, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 14 June 2017.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2016, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:

»

7

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

EERRE (#)

AAFMR_—R—-LENALEE_ZLEANA
J\H BT (R W R A 35 72 1) 97 458 0 AR 24 ) B
W E BT > L T T B ROR RE Y R A 2 ) ME e Bt
HRRERG WG LRFERER s B aie
XFEFEARRE > R _F—LEANHANH TN
W= 20 BT > REREAR A R A W B P B R A
BE > VUL S A PR A ] > Mk 2 A AT
BIGRERISIPEA RO 1717128 1716546 > B¢
HIEG R o

WA KAFMR - —LEAATHBIEZR
—LAEN A oS B (R B R B AE R ) W5
B A A B4y PR R T BT R A B AR
RBEIREE —F — NERBIBE > BabAF i M P 3
PERAE RS AR —-EEANA+HNE F4H
W= 40 > R A R 2 By i B B R 4
BE > BT SREGA R A > Hudik 2y B U AT
B REWRISIPEA RO 1717128 17165 4 > B
MEFHE -

MBERBE

AREFBRE T —ANET A= — H IR TE 4
R A R RO SE AR (I 8k A O T B R A%
B WE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
SEoRE CEfE M SE-SF SEf
US$’000 US$’000 US$000 US$’000 US$'000
FF FEL T FE T FEL T Fr T
Total assets BB 3,633,425 3,127,863 3,154,018 2,759,488 2,116,880
Total liabilities A E 2,214,677 1,811,981 1,767,610 1,513,173 1,024,325
Non-controlling interests FE b e 25 295,182 229,970 207,780 177,193 173,896
Equity attributable to A ) IR RE A
shareholders of the Company hEzS 1,123,566 1,085,912 1,178,628 1,069,122 918,659
3,633,425 3,127,863 3,154,018 2,759,488 2,116,380
Profit for the year AR\ ) IR R RE A
attributable to shareholders byl
of the Company 260,278 261,575 251,425 186,211 204,154
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 15

to the financial statements of the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 16 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 35 to the financial

statements of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 47 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual

report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to US$1,431,045,000 (2015:
US$1,568,637,000) which included the proposed final dividend for
the year 2016 of US$52,300,000 (2015: US$68,644,000). Details of
the proposed final dividend are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements of the annual report.

A H

M- BERRE

REREZZ-ANETZHAZHIEEER » KE
ARy S ~ W B B i M 52 T Y o A SO 4F i P9 B
WA M aELS

REWMRE

REREZZ-ANETZHA=ZHILEER » KE
P Y 5 S P S 8 TRl Y AR RO 4 i P9 T B R i
16 °

&S

REEZF-AFFZA=ZTHIEEER > A2
) CLER AT BA My Y 52 Bl A U A R P B R MR
735 0

BErRBERE

A2 ) 240 FU) T ) SN SN D A K
A 2 ) 8 6 2 b A5 1) BT PR SR £ T JBeAy

BE LHEFBEEHARANLETHES

BREZZ-ANETZHA=ZT—HILEERN » KAH
o HE A O 2 0RO S~ O A A
H B TR SR o

(G

TRARE A > AR 2 R R A 45 L Aok A4 52 Bl W A 40 T SO
N B WO M R 4T R AR A RE SR S B AR A -

Ao EEE

N —NETZA=Z+—H > KAAFTHIIRE
Tt 25 14483,104.585 3500 (R — A4« 1516,863.7
HEIL) > HPARBERIREN 2 — N ER BB
25,230.08F 0 (ZF—F4 : 6,864.48370) » &
R B A R R 4 P9 B S R M L3 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

- -

N FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EFER

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$1,211,000 (2015: US$1,496,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue and purchases attributable to the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue and purchases for the year ended 31 December 2016,

respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan

Dhanin Chearavanont
Adirek Sripratak

Soopakij Chearavanont
Suphachai Chearavanont
Bai Shanlin

Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg

Anan Athigapanich (resigned on 16 January 2017)
Mr. Yu Jianping (appointed on 16 January 2017)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and, together with all
other Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation, but may offer
themselves for re-election at annual general meetings in accordance

with the Company’s bye-laws.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 77, Mr. Yu Jianping, who
was appointed as executive Director by the Board on 16 January 2017,
will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 82, Mr. Adirek Sripratak,
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, Mr.
Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung, and Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent and meet the

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of

the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 44 to the
financial statements of the annual report, no Director had material
interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 44 to the
financial statements of the annual report, there had been no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December

2016.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
page 52 of the annual report, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any

other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE BONDS

Details of corporate bonds of the Group are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the announcements
dated 6 January 2016, 14 November 2016 and 28 November 2016

respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long

A H

EERFETBAEBREAAARHEEE
ZENROREAERONVEZER AR

BREF-ANEF A= H s MR R R
SE352M BLAE F AR 2 W] M A Z X5 e I G RC Bk o
AL A 1k A ) R T A2 T R L A > A%
H R B ZATBON B R A A4 T B H A T 0 1 T
B K B JBe A ¥ o e 2 R A (38 2 I M) | ko ([
FI R SEXVIE B € &) MATE -

(a) EBERALANER(HFR)

Positions)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued ordinary
Number of ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
A2 W] BB AT
Pt 5 35 e 7 52 J3e e AR
HEAW B4 it B H BEA A e
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 37,600,000 0.16%
A R e R HaEHEA A
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
e R etk HaEA A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b)

Directors’ interests in shares of associated
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

=

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

EERFETBAEBRAEAD AR HEEE
EENROREARRONVESRR XS (&)

(b) EBRAQATHMEBEENES (HFR)

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited EFAL¥EBERA

Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Number of associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

05 R W 2

CEAT A

HHAW 54y Ji ¢ % o BOH RN

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Beneficial owner 376,000 0.16%
B R Sek fEE-E 2PN

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 210,000 0.09%
AR Sk HamEa A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

A H

TERREBBEZRBEROAREAT
REREEZIXABNAL

BREF-ANEF A= H s MR R R
SE336M BLAE F A 24 V] M A7 2 6 G I G AT 8k o R At
AL GERAF M E SRR B ETBAE) RAL A
JBe A D2 K R P A AT O RE B S RN T

Approximate
percentage of the

issued ordinary

Number of shares and share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity underlying shares held the Company
AR 2 W) C AT
T B0y B AH 7R W 0 % e A
Ji& 3K 44 % Wit &4 B 8 H U RONER/ige
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Ktik1) (Htak1)
Charoen Pokphand Group (2) Interest of controlled corporation 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
Company Limited i s E RE 25
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 12,774,814,845 (L) 53.1 (L)
Public Company controlled corporation
Limited JEEnt PN ECT R £
ITOCHU Corporation (3) Beneficial owner 6,017,959,308 (L) 25.0 (L)
P TR AE T Sk 2 A HaHEA A
Notes: Mt -
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) [LIREL A -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2)

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) had
a long position in 12,774,814,845 shares and underlying shares of
the Company which included (i) 1,261,077,748 preference shares
beneficially owned by CPF and (ii) 11,513,737,097 ordinary shares
beneficially owned by CPF’s wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment
Limited (“CPFI”). As a result of certain provisions in an agreement
entered into in July 2014 between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU
Corporation (“ITOCHU”) in relation to the sale of an aggregate of
6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company to ITOCHU, for the
purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, CPF was taken to
be interested in the shares owned by ITOCHU. As such, CPF had a
long position in 18,792,774,153 shares and underlying shares of the
Company in aggregate. Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
also declared interest in these shares by virtue of its shareholding

interest in CPF.

ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the
Company. As a result of certain provisions in an agreement entered
into in July 2014 between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU in relation to the
sale of an aggregate of 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company
to ITOCHU, for the purpose of Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the
SFO, ITOCHU was taken to be interested in the shares owned by
CPF. As such, ITOCHU had a long position in 18,792,774,153 shares

and underlying shares of the Company in aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person (not

being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest

or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date unless

otherwise cancelled or amended.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, being 1,698,783,571 ordinary shares of the Company,
based on 16,987,835,710 issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme in 2012. Such
maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of all the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
now represents 7% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

No share option was granted during the year under review. As at 31

December 2016, the Company had no outstanding share options.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 36 to

the financial statements of the annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into the
following connected transaction that was subject to the Listing Rules’

reporting requirement for disclosure in the annual report.
Acquisition of Entire Equity Interest in Hubei Chia Tai

On 11 May 2016, Chia Tai (China) Investment Company Limited
(“Chia Tai China Investment”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement with Chia Tai
Food Investment Company Limited (“Chia Tai Food Investment”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), for the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Chia Tai”) at a
consideration of US$15.95 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB103 million) (the “Acquisition”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Acquisition of Entire Equity Interest in Hubei Chia Tai
(continued)

As at 11 May 2016, Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited (“CPF”) was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company and approximately 45.4%
of CPF’s issued share capital was held by CPG. Due to CPG’s near
majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG have agreed to
treat CPG and its direct and indirect subsidiaries as connected persons
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As Chia Tai
Food Investment was an indirect subsidiary of CPG, the transaction
contemplated under the acquisition agreement was treated as if it was
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Acquisition was reported and announced under the

Listing Rules as if the same were to be applicable.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that were subject to the

Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.

Supply

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, the Company
had entered into a master supply agreement with High Orient
Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) (“2013 Master CPP Supply
Agreement”). As the 2013 Master CPP Supply Agreement would
expire on 31 December 2016 and the Company intended to continue
the transactions contemplated thereunder, on 31 October 2016, the
Company entered into a new master supply agreement with HOEL
(“2016 Master CPP Supply Agreement”) for the supply by the Group
to HOEL and its associates (“HOEL Group”) of various feed-related,
farm-related and food-related products produced or procured by the
Group including animal feed, feed raw materials, livestock and aquatic
products, and processed meats and food products. The 2016 Master
CPP Supply Agreement took effect on 1 January 2017 and would
continue until 31 December 2019. The 2016 Master CPP Supply
Agreement and the annual caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 13 December 2016. Transactions
pursuant to the 2013 Master CPP Supply Agreement continued to
take place in the year ended 31 December 2016.

HOEL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions under the 2013 Master CPP Supply Agreement were
treated as if they were continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the approved annual
cap for the transactions contemplated under the 2013 Master CPP
Supply Agreement and the actual sales recorded amounted to

US$3,073,000,000 and US$684,739,000 respectively.
Purchase
High Orient Enterprises Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, the Company
had entered into a master purchase agreement with C.P. Trading Co.,
Led. (“CPT”) (“2013 Master CPP Purchase Agreement”). CPT was
no longer deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company
due to changes in some of its shareholders. However, CPT’s related
entities which had been supplying the products to the Group under
the 2013 Master CPP Purchase Agreement were also associates of
HOEL. As the 2013 Master CPP Purchase Agreement would expire
on 31 December 2016 and the Company intended to continue the
transactions contemplated thereunder, on 31 October 2016, the
Company entered into a new master purchase agreement with HOEL
(“2016 Master CPP Supply Agreement”) for the purchase from the
HOEL Group of feed raw materials, packaging materials, livestock and
aquatic products, meats and other items required by the Group in the
production of feed-related, farm-related and food-related products.
The 2016 Master CPP Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January
2017 and would continue until 31 December 2019. The 2016 Master
CPP Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 13 December 2016.
Transactions pursuant to the 2013 Master CPP Purchase Agreement
continued to take place in the year ended 31 December 2016.

HOEL is an indirect subsidiary of CPG and was treated as a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions under the 2013 Master CPP Purchase Agreement were
treated as if they were continuing connected transactions of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the approved annual
cap for the transactions contemplated under the 2013 Master CPP

Purchase Agreement and the actual purchases recorded amounted to

US$1,735,000,000 and US$551,566,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 16 April 2015, the Company had
entered into a master supply agreement with Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited (“CTEI”) (the “CTEI Master Supply
Agreement”), which at that time was a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, for the purchase of chlortetracycline and animal
drugs (including any antibiotics) required for the production and sale
of animal and aqua feed products by the Group from CTEI and its
subsidiaries (the “CTEI Group”). The CTEI Master Supply Agreement
took effect on 3 July 2015 and would continue until 31 December
2017.

The CTEI Master Supply Agreement was entered into in anticipation
of the spin off and separate listing on the Stock Exchange of CTEI,
which took place on 3 July 2015. As a result, CPF is the controlling
shareholder of both the Company and of CTEI. The transactions
between the Group and the CTEI Group under the CTEI Master
Supply Agreement have therefore become continuing connected

transactions of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules.

Based on the relevant percentage ratios, the transactions under the
CTEI Master Supply Agreement were subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the CTEI Master Supply Agreement and the actual purchases
recorded amounted to US$13,176,000 and US$9,641,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Technical Assistance Services

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, C.P. Vietnam
Corporation (“CPVC”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, had entered into a technical assistance services agreement
with CPG (the “CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement”)
for the provision of certain technical assistance services by CPG
to CPVC in connection with CPVC’s business in Vietnam. The
CPG Technical Assistance Services Agreement took effect on
1 January 2014 and continued until 31 December 2016. The service
fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net sales value of the products
manufactured, produced and/or sold by CPVC in Vietnam or exported
from Vietnam, exclusive of the value added tax chargeable on the
sale of such products under applicable Vietnam laws and regulations,
commercial discounts, rebates and returned goods. The CPG
Technical Assistance Services Agreement and the annual cap were
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under the Listing Rules, but were reported and announced under the

Listing Rules.

CPG was treated as a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions under the CPG Technical Assistance Services
Agreement were treated as if they were continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the CPG Technical Assistance
Services Agreement and the actual service fee incurred amounted to
US$58,000,000 and US$32,024,000 respectively.

CPG Trademark Licence

On 28 December 2016, CPVC entered into a trademark licence
agreement with CPG (the “CPG Trademark Licence Agreement”),
whereby CPG granted CPVC a non-exclusive right to use the
trademarks in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CPG Trademark Licence Agreement. The CPG Trademark Licence
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2017 and would continue until
31 December 2019. The loyalty fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net
revenue of CPVC (and any subsidiary which has been granted a sub-
licence to use the trademarks) from sale of goods and provision of
services, which was the same as under the CPG Technical Assistance

Services Agreement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CPG Trademark Licence (continued)

CPG was treated as a substantial shareholder of the Company and its
subsidiaries and their respective associates as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
transaction between CPG and CPVC under the CPG Trademark
Licence Agreement was therefore treated as if it was a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
CPG Trademark Licence Agreement and the annual caps were exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the
Listing Rules, but were reported and announced under the Listing

Rules.
MS Technical Assistance Services

Prior to the reporting period, on 14 November 2013, CPVC had
entered into a technical assistance services agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Modern State Investments
Limited (“Modern State”) (the “MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement”) for the provision of certain technical assistance
services by Modern State, to CPVC in connection with CPVC’s
business in Vietnam. The MS Technical Assistance Services
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2014 and continued until
31 December 2016. The service fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net
sales value of the products manufactured, produced and/or sold by
CPVC in Vietnam or exported from Vietnam, exclusive of the value
added tax chargeable on the sale of such products under applicable
Vietnam laws and regulations, commercial discounts, rebates and
returned goods. The MS Technical Assistance Services Agreement
and the annual caps were exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules, but were reported and

announced under the Listing Rules.

CPVC is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in which
CPF (being a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore
a connected person of the Company other than at the level of the
Company’s subsidiaries) will be able to exercise more than 10%
of the voting rights in the general meeting. Hence CPVC was a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the MS Technical
Assistance Services Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the MS Technical Assistance
Services Agreement and the actual service fee incurred amounted to
US$58,000,000 and US$32,024,000 respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and had no material findings of non-
compliance report to the independent non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as

a whole.

In respect of the above connected transaction and continuing
connected transactions, the Company has complied with the relevant
announcement, circular and shareholders’ approval requirements

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates, interest income from
HOEL and its related entities, and sales to ITOCHU Corporation,
which are disclosed as related party disclosures in note 44 to the
financial statements of the annual report, do not fall under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction or were fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules and thus are not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance

with the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A.,
Hong Kong Branch and Kasikornbank Public Company Limited
(“Kasikornbank”) as mandated lead arrangers, other lenders (together
the “Lenders”) and Kasikornbank as agent, relating to a facility
amount of US$600 million (the “Facility”) made available to the
Company by the Lenders (the “Facility Agreement”). The Facility was
used to repay all amounts owing by the Company under the US$410
million term loan facility agreement dated 19 December 2012 and to
finance the working capital and/or general corporate requirements of

the Company and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
if Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage of the legal and
beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share capital of the

Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Facility Agreement
to become immediately due and payable and any commitments under

the Facility to be cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rules 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2016.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired a
70% shareholding in a company which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of animal feed, poultry farming and trading
as well as the processing and trading of chicken meat products in the
PRC. As a result of such acquisition, poultry farming and trading
and meat products trading have been added to the range of the
Group’s business in the PRC (the “PRC Farming and Meat Products

Business”).

During the year, Mr Dhanin Chearavanont, Mr Adirek Sripratak,
Mr Soopakij Chearavanont and Mr Bai Shanlin were also directors
(but not substantial shareholders) of CPG and/or a number of CPG
subsidiaries (the “Excluded Companies”) which, including through
their subsidiaries, were engaged in businesses which also included
the PRC Farming and Meat Products Business. Accordingly, these
Directors have disclosed that they are considered to have an interest
in businesses which may compete or may be likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the newly added PRC Farming and Meat
Products Business of the Group, pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

As the board of directors of the Company functions independently
of the boards of the Excluded Companies, the Directors believe that
the Group is capable of carrying on its newly-added PRC Farming
and Meat Products Business independently of, and at arm’s length
from, the PRC Farming and Meat Products Business carried on by the
Excluded Companies.

The Directors, including those who are considered to have an interest
in the PRC Farming and Meat Products Business of the Excluded
Companies, will, as and when required under the Bye-laws, abstain
from voting on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract,
arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his associates has a

material interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware that any of the
Directors had interest in any business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 145, every Directors shall be
indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities

incurred by him as such Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’

liability insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company applied
the principles and complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The principal duties of
the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control. The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements prior to the publication of the interim and final

results.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
up to the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan

Director

Hong Kong
24 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 72 to 202, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

B AR

n

B

FRETEH

IR B T R AR B A 1 TSR B > R AR
AR MBI N E G e A EE AR o E IR
AE B A 7w R 0 A B s e It LR R R AT R
B o TAA L F IR A R R

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(v).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
animal feed products, livestock and aquatic animals and
valued-added processed food products.

The terms of sales contracts relating to goods acceptance
by customers are similar and revenue is generally
recognised when the products are collected by the
customers from the Group’s premises or when the
products are delivered to the location designated by the
customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to
an inherent risk of manipulation by management to
meet targets or expectations and because errors in the
recognition of revenue could have a material impact on
the Group’s profit for the year.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue

included the following:

evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
raised during the reporting period, enquiring of
management the reasons for such adjustments and
comparing the details of the adjustments with
relevant underlying documentation;

assessing whether revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate accounting period and in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts by comparing a sample
of sales transactions recorded around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
goods dispatch notes or documentation indicating the
customers’ acknowledgement of delivery of the goods

sold; and

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year end to
identify significant sales returns and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate reporting period.
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B A R 2 A

Valuation of current livestock - swine

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(k).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s biological assets mainly represent piglets
and fattening swine which are presented as “current
livestock — swine” in the consolidated financial
statements and are measured at their fair value less costs

of disposal.

Management determined the fair value based on market
prices and, where market prices were not available for
certain age groups, based on market prices of other age
groups, with adjustments to take into account differences
in weight. The Group’s current livestock — swine had an
aggregate value of US$282 million as at 31 December
2016.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s current
livestock — swine as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s total assets and the
significance of the changes in fair value of biological
assets to the Group’s profit before taxation and because
the valuation of swine requires significant management
judgement and estimation, in particular in determining
the market prices for swine of different age groups and in

making adjustments for weight differences.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the Group’s

current livestock — swine included the following:

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to swine
management, in particular, the classification of swine
into different age groups and the assessment of swine

quantity;

observing, on a sample basis, the physical count of
swine performed by the Group and comparing the
Group’s swine management records with the quantity
of swine for each different age group as set out in

management’s fair value calculation table;

assessing the experience and knowledge of the
relevant personnel from the Group’s finance
department and operation team who were involved in

assessing the value of swine at the reporting date;

discussing with management the methodology
adopted in estimating the fair value of swine and
challenging key estimates and assumptions adopted in
the valuations by comparing market prices for swine
of different age groups with available market data and

by utilising our industry knowledge; and

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the valuation of swine with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards.
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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B

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the REMBREAREMERRAENER

consolidated financial statements (continued) (#&)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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A 0 BEAE AL Rt B B B R AR A
S 85 S At v B R R BB R o M A B Y B R A
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R 5 A e
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other [ IEHAM » TAMBEFF T B GHE T rH S E
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant  F}#i B ~ REf 2Pk - B RFFHBHE > iR MA
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal  Z&FF vk il Hy P9 3 35 i W) AT A] BB B [E o

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have  FRIMEM R ZE GHRAAEY > SIWHERMOKEF
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence [ i 7. Mk 0Y #H BH 2 35 G PR 25K » iF B A M 3@ v
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that  §8 A PRHUBE 2 % € 52 2 A M ~r vk 09 BT B & fn 3
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where  fBZEIE » DL AL H S DT » FH B 6% By H6 4% i o

applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e mEWKaE R

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

2016 2015
= =
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t < i FLF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS PR EEY
REVENUE e A 5 5,281,193 5,129,818
Cost of sales 85 8 g AR (4,348,607) (4,225,347)
Gross profit EH 932,586 904,471
Net changes in fair value of WG RN 2 5
biological assets 6 (33,009) 6,954
899,577 911,425
Other income, net oAl e A AR 7 29,795 32,600
Selling and distribution costs BB Ko 4y i R AR (241,771) (272,933)
General and administrative expenses B RS (244,874) (246,251)
Finance costs I 5 AR 8 (35,473) (39,121)
Share of profits and losses of: R A ¥ 1) % e 18
Joint ventures B E 21(a) 4,129 3,679
Associates T4 A ] 22(a) 11,091 11,352
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt T i A 9 422,474 400,751
Income tax Jt 4 Bt 12 (92,995) (91,976)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM AR FE R SR AR T A
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 329,479 308,775
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CDRILREER
Profit for the year/period from KH ORI AR
discontinued operations BN A 39 - 30,402
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A A ¥ R 329,479 339,177
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mEZEKRRE X
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANET_H=1—HILEE
2016 2015
SEoNE SRR
Note US$°000 US$’000
Mt Ve ForTx
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HoAtr 2 T W AR
Continuing operations FRERBEY
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently HEMARGEH>BESR
to profit or loss: wZIHH :
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, net M AR AR 15 13,133 3,600
Income tax effect Ji 4% B 5 2 34 (790) (478)
12,343 3,122
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to HEwgE>EER
profit or loss: twZIEHH -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign A Hb 3 T R LR 2
operations FE b0, 7 % (89,603) (69,761)
Share of other comprehensive income of: R A At 2 i W 2
Joint ventures GEME 21(a) (1,278) (873)
Associates W2 ] 22(a) (5,051) (2,127)
(95,932) (72,761)
Other comprehensive income from continuing KB REREEERTS
operations, net of income tax A% S Ath 2 G WK 2 (83,589) (69,639)
Discontinued operations D& IEREE
Items that are reclassified subsequently to profit B REZEH S EHZR
or loss: ZJEHH :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign A b SE T R R 2
operations [FEE Ba, 7% - 121
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE Al At 2 TG W 25
Joint ventures G- 21(a) - (1,057)
Associate iR A | 22(a) - 21
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon B4 IR IE K A 38 1 %
distribution in specie of CTEI 56 1 IRE 471 EE e B0 5 Al 2
| 3% 39 - (23,751)
Other comprehensive income from discontinued 2 H B & 1k £8 %5 2E % % B
operations, net of income tax 15 B A% o At 2 i UK %5 - (24,660)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR B fir 5 B 4% A< 45 il 2 i
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX W 4 (83,589) (94,305)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR A< 4 2 Tl #iC i 48 %
THE YEAR 245,890 244,872
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
73

2 - XN F F R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZzZEKRE R
Year ended 31 December 2016 BRE T —XN4ETH =+ —H L4 )%

2016 2015
ZERARE R A
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it < i FLF
Profit attributable to: e A Wf i 43 L T
Shareholders of the Company AN T EER
Continuing operations TR 260,278 242,497
Discontinued operations SIS ER - 25,078
260,278 267,575
Non-controlling interest I ¥ ) e E 2
Continuing operations BERESER 69,201 66,278
Discontinued operations O IEREEK - 5,324
69,201 71,602
329,479 339,177
Total comprehensive income ELEE E R T
attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company AN T e
Continuing operations FEREER 184,748 182,645
Discontinued operations ERIERESER - 3,706
184,748 186,351
Non-controlling interest I Jr i e 2
Continuing operations R B EH 61,142 56,491
Discontinued operations O IR &g T - 2,030
61,142 58,521
245,890 244,872
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A2 w] B 5 HEA) Z 45 JB 163 A
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
— Basic and diluted — B AR %
Continuing operations H e Er 1.027 0.957
Discontinued operations O IEREEHK - 0.099
1.027 1.056

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the A4FPEEZ BB BN MHBEHREMTI3NEE -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R R

31 December 2016 —F—ANHE+H=+—H

2016 2015
SN SE LA
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt i i FLF
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik i By %
Property, plant and equipment L E B & 15 1,399,227 1,182,138
Investment properties EN L E 16 13,513 16,365
Land lease prepayments TE AT oA S 17 128,407 105,748
Non-current biological assets JEE B A E E 18 57,216 49,481
Intangible assets G E 19 29,464 34,169
Investments in joint ventures NEBLENIRE 21 19,289 19,669
Investments in associates TGS N F IR G 22 105,279 48,200
Available-for-sale investments AL BE 23 11,730 8,435
Goodwill RS 24 35,121 37,563
Other non-current assets HAIEREE E 124,692 18,712
Deferred tax assets P 4F Bl JH A 34 3,907 4,411
Total non-current assets 28Ik B E 1,927,845 1,524,891
CURRENT ASSETS i B B
Inventories yeyty 25 533,371 494,676
Current biological assets W AR E 18 326,582 299,210
Trade and bills receivables FEWE SRR N 26 202,902 148,352
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JHfJ Mgk ~ 3% 4 M H A
R W R K 27 181,704 116,727
Pledged deposits CHG I AE 3 28 41,005 48,900
Time deposits with maturity over FMABEB=AZ
three months E WA 3K 28 151,112 206,869
Cash and cash equivalents Bl & LBl &5 EY 28 268,904 288,238
Total current assets AR B 1,705,580 1,602,972
CURRENT LIABILITIES I RER i
Trade and bills payables WEATE DR 2 29 340,609 280,802
Other payables and accruals HAbEAER ATEEREE FH 30 346,408 320,309
Bank borrowings SRAITAE K 31 376,093 482,963
Income tax payables JE £} B A5 B 18,326 26,924
Total current liabilities #8378 £ 1,081,436 1,110,998
NET CURRENT ASSETS % I W) ¥ 624,144 491,974
TOTAL ASSETS LESS AR A IO B SR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,551,989 2,016,865
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B

FEMBAMRRE
31 December 2016 —~E—N N4+ _H=+—H
2016 2015
e
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t < i FLFo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I W B £ £
Bank borrowings SRAT A K 31 904,133 620,107
Corporate bond e X 32 143,386 -
Other non-current liabilities Ho At I 37 B A 33 24,096 25,543
Deferred tax liabilities AR FiE B IE A AR 34 61,626 55,333
Total non-current liabilities #8JE i B A 1,133,241 700,983
NET ASSETS Jeg- ey 1,418,748 1,315,882
EQUITY HE #3
Equity attributable to shareholders of A 2 ) JE SR M A BE 25
the Company
Issued capital CEAT AR 35 253,329 253,329
Reserves A 37 817,937 763,939
Proposed final dividend Joig= RN )5S 13 52,300 68,644
1,123,566 1,085,912
Non-controlling interest I 452 ) 1 4 25 295,182 229,970
TOTAL EQUITY HE 25 4850 1,418,748 1,315,882

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the

Company on 24 February 2017.

Adirek Sripratak %8156

Director #H
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Arunee Watcharananan

Director #H
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R o A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

- A5 S 4y
mAERg X
Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—NE+_H=+—HILF)¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR T RAHER
Share Property PRC Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital Merger  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account Surplus reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interest equity
C#ff Fety e ok wl ik TE MENE AR ik Febihit

Tk Bk BB (1] W EMRE R L] FE KMERL fd iE AR
Note Us§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§'000 US§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 US§'000
LA I P s oA o oA I oA I o O oA o A I o O o o o A I A O A O
(note 37(b))  (note 37(c))  (note 37(d))  (note 37(e))
(i) (Wiksie)  (Waksid) (W)

At 1 January 2016 REF-AE-A-R 153319 10,740 1,272,669 13012 (1,612918) 34514 13,731 (51,107) 964,297 08,044 1,085,912 19970 1,315,882
Profit for the year KA - - - - - - - - 260,278 - 260,278 69,201 329479

Other comprehensive income RS2

for the year:

Exchange differences on LRSS A
translation of foreign operations ZIERER - - - - - - - (81,544) - - (81,544) (8059) (89,603)
Surplus on revaluation of office LEL Eaaizdts
premises, net 15 - - - - - 13,133 - - - - 13,133 - 13,133
Income tax effect ity e 34 - - - - - 790) - - - - (190) - (190)
Share of other comprehensive Bl b 2 i -
income of:
Joint ventures ARfE (a) - - - - - - - (1,278) - - (1,278) - (1,278)
Associates BaAR 12(a) - - - - - - - (5,051) - - (5,051) - (5,051)
Total comprehensive income ERATREAH
for the year - - - - - 12343 - (87813) 160,178 - 184,748 61,142 145,890
Acquisition of subsidiaries TR A 38 - - - - - - - - - - - 10080 10,080
Capital injection by a non- ERitlid #1/e SN
controlling equity holder BA - - - - - - - - - - - 1,530 1,530
Dividend paid to non-controlling % i - Je 5 M 25 3
equity holders [/3:3 - - - - - - - - - - - (17,540) (17,540)
2015 final dividend declared ER-F-IE
KA - - - - - - - - - (68.644)  (68,644) - (68,644)
2016 interim dividend ZE-NERHRE 13 - - (78,450) - - - - - - - (18:450) - (18:450)
2016 final dividend proposed BE_E-AF
A B - - (52,300) - - - - - - 52300 - - -
Transfer in/(out) A/ () - - - - - - 9,678 - (9,678) - - - -
At 31 December 2016 RN
FZAZE-R 153319 10,740¢ 1141919 13,012¢ (L612918)% 46,857 142,410¢ (138980)*  1,214,897* 51,300 1,123,566 195,181 1418748
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—XETH=1—HILFEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AN RAER
Share Property PRC Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital Merger  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account Surplus Teserve Teserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interest equity
CE#f Rt -t 23 wh R HE SE FAR i Febhit

Bk i BiE (1] W EGRE REEE UERE HE AMRE it g HEAE
Note Us§'000 US§000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 US§'000
Wit #ifr  #Fxfr  Erfr  ExTx  #EFx Eafx #E4fa ErFA Eadx ELFr FEnfr Fati Eifn
(note 37(b))  (note 37(c)) ~ (note 37(d))  (note 37(e))
(i) (K5 (W) (Waksie)

At 1 January 2015 REZZ-HE-A—H 153309 10,740 1,396,882 13,109 (1,612,918 31392 125,681 33,139 835,260 1913 1,178,628 207,780 1,386,408
Profit for the year AERF - - - - - - - - 267,575 - 267,575 11,602 339,177

Other comprehensive income SRR

for the year:

Exchange differences on M TR SR

translation of foreign operations 2 [ 3 ¥ - - - - - - - (59.865) - - (59,865) (0.175) (69,640)
Surplus on revaluation of office LEL EaAizdtd

premises, net 15 - - - - - 3,600 - - - - 3,600 - 3,600
Income tax effect ity e 34 - - - - - (478) - - - - (479) - (478)
Share of other comprehensive Bl b 2 i -

income of:

Joint ventures RELE U(a) - - - - - - - (1,930) - - (1930) - (1930)

Associates BEAR () - - - - - - - (2,106) B B (1106) - (2106)

Release of exchange fluctuation EHMREA S EEE
teserve upon distribution in I3 0k
specie of CTE[ 2% - - - - - - - (20,445) - - (20445) (3,300) (23,751)

Total comprehensive income ERATREAH

for the year - - - - - 3,122 - (84,346) 261,575 - 186,351 58,521 244,872
Share of merger reserve of associate  HEA B4 4 7 A B B - - - - (313) - - - - - (313) - (313)
Dividend paid to non-controlling 3¢ i e 4% il f 25

equity holders B g - - - - - - - - - - - (16,188) (16,188)
2014 final dividend declared ER-B-NERYRA - - - - - - - - - (71,913) (T1,913) - (11913)
2015 interim dividend ZER-REPHRE 13 - - (55,569) - - - - - - - (55,569) - (55,569)
2015 final dividend proposed RA-F-LEANRE D - - (68,644) - - - - - - 68,644 - - -
Dividend by way of a distribution DA AR IR e B

in specie 3 - - - (97) 33 - (8,032) - (143,436) - (151,172) (20,143) (171,415)
Transfer in/(out) #A/ () - - - - - - 15,081 - (15,082) - - - -
At 31 December 2015 REB-Hk

FZA=+-H 153,329 10,740¢ 1,272,669* 13,012% (1,612,918)* 34514 132,731* (5L107)* 964,297 68,044 1,085,912 129,970 1,315,882
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * SR IR AL A B B R UL R N Z AR B SO
US$817,937,000 (2015: US$763,939,000) in the consolidated 1,793 TH# 350 (ZF 1047 1 7116,393.9835T) °

statement of financial position.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
?ﬁ/‘ﬁ =] EE ﬁ /Jili ==} %‘:Z
Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—NE+_H=+—HILF)¥

2016 2015
TR ANE R
Note US$’000 US$’000
At ik F L Fi FoLF oL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REWHzHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: I A58 i ¥ )
Continuing operations TR R R 422,474 400,751
Discontinued operations OISR - 33,084
Adjustments for: R
Bank and other interest income SRAT T LAt ) B WA 7 (9,104) (10,447)
Net changes in fair value of investment EvS oL/ E PN WIER PR
properties 7 272 1,675
Finance costs S 5 B AR 8 35,473 39,007
Depreciation of property, plant and LIE Y &
equipment 9 89,086 78,848
Amortisation of intangible assets T G 7 2 i 8 9 2,597 2,745
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TR AT 1 Hh LS 2 8 9 3,588 3,134
Depreciation of biological assets stated at A P B w T R D AE AR R
cost less accumulated depreciation and BA MR Z A B T
impairment 9 28,174 26,623
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant MEWE - REEEHE2ZER
and equipment, net (k) 38 9 199 (456)
Gain on disposal of land lease prepayments  H} 8 FE A} + #oFl & # 2 W 25 7 - (1,025)
Impairment of trade receivables, net JRE Wi B 5 M sk DR AL ¥ A 9 952 5,335
Net changes in fair value of biological A R A OB 2 B B
assets 6 33,009 (6,954)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A 62 B B e 4
Joint ventures HEME 21(a) (4,129) (5,260)
Associates W28 A W] 22(a) (11,091) (13,229)
Gain on distribution in specie of CTEI 7 08 B W o3 IR O KA 3 1 B
— Exchange fluctuation reserve Z W gs — % I KA 3 B B
attributable to CTEI recycled to profit JE AL Z A1 REE i B0 £k 44 [l 4 =2
or loss L=k 39 - (23,751)
591,500 530,080
(Increase)/decrease in inventories wB8& hn) WA (38,619) 43,876
Increase in biological assets A ¥ B4 m (94,994) (42,218)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JRE Wi BT B R ek B SR B Mg (41,166) (17,030)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits  TH AT MR K ~ 4 4 S o Ath JE e i 3
and other receivables () /9% A (47,327) 5,410
Increase in trade payables JE AT B2 5 2k 18 fm 61,257 53,946
Increase in other payables and accruals JLfth, W A H R B TELAR B I B4 19,844 51,628
Cash generated from operations REEEZHE 450,495 625,692
Interest paid [REER DS (57,498) (54,937)
Income tax paid [BEEREEY A (87,923) (78,218)
Net cash flows generated from BEmHaIHEeRERH
operating activities 305,074 492,537
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER
Year ended 31 December 2016 BRE T —XN4ETH =+ —H L4 )%
2016 2015
SENE DB fiF
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE Sy i FoToC
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment [ B ¥ 3% ~ B = M ik 5 (209,429) (275,492)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities FLAth e 3 B £ £ WA (1,823) (9,459)
Increase in land lease prepayments TEAF - A 2 1 (4,605) (57,471)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current HoAb e B & (B ) W A
assets (108,993) 9,735
Investments in subsidiaries & g A F) 38 (49,242) -
Investments in associates g og -/ (60,221) -
Dividend received from joint ventures WO A A 3 S 3,231 2,428
Dividend received from associates W B 7 o ] R 9,182 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, WY - R B
plant and equipment AKIE 1,988 3,443
Proceeds from disposal of land lease A TE A - A T A O
prepayments - 5,990
Receipt from PRC government on factories g i 4% 28 1 7€ H [0 B0 RF BUAS 3k T8
relocation 18,347 17,055
Interest received c A B 9,104 10,447
Net cash flows used in investing activities 5 & 1 B) Bt Fl Z B & i & 5 (392,461) (293,324)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AMETNHZHEeRE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings o1 R AT A R 1,435,449 1,303,906
Repayment of bank borrowings 183 AT (1,381,306) (1,273,562)
New corporate bond PR X e 32 144,842 -
Capital injection from a non-controlling I e 1 R 2 B R A AR
equity holder 1,530 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EIT A R A () 4,077 (10,359)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with 2 H BB = A Z & W EZK W
maturity over three months A () 44,904 (46,567)
Dividend paid SRR S8 (147,094) (127,482)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity AT T I 4 o) ek R A T R B
holders (17,540) (16,188)
Distribution in specie B Y45k 39 - (18,063)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing mEmENS S (H)2zHE
activities i i 84,862 (188,315)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN REeERBREZEEY (WP)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 3 A (2,525) 10,898
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ERZBERBRE&EED
of year 288,238 287,141
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A [ 28 5% B 2 3% 8 5 4 (16,809) (9,801)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 4ERKZBE&RBE%ED
END OF YEAR 28 268,904 288,238

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

L

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—NE+_H=+—HILF)¥

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or “CPP”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are located at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and 21st Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,

respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were

involved in the following activities:

. manufacture and sale of animal feed and value-added,
processed food products in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”)

° manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals,
and manufacture and sale of value-added, processed
food products in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam

(“Vietnam”)
o investment and property holding

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for office premises, investment properties,
certain biological assets and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value or at fair value less
costs of disposal, where appropriate. These financial statements
are presented in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“US$’000”) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit

balance.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

B AR

N

2.1
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2.2

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of new and amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current year. Of these, the

following standards may be relevant to the Group:

IFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts
Amendments to [FRS 10, ~ Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and TAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — [nvestment
entities: Applying the consolidation exception

Amendments to [FRS 11~ Amendments to [FRS 11 Joint Arrangements — Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations

Amendments to [AS 1 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Disclosure initiative

Amendments to [AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and TAS 38 Intangible Assets — Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and amoritisation

Amendments to [AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and

TAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture bearer plants

Amendments to [AS 16
and 1AS 38

Amendments to [AS 16
and [AS 41

Annual Improvements to ~ Amendments to a number of [FRSs

[FRSs 2012-2014 cycle

The adoption of these new and amendments to IFRSs has had

no significant financial effect on this financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current year.

2.1

2.2
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the

Group:

[FRS 9 Financial Instruments*

Amendments to IFRS 10 Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

and 1AS 28 and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

— Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

IFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to IAS 7 Amendments to [AS 7 Statement of cash flows - Disclosure
initiative'
Amendments to [AS 12 Amendments to [AS 12 Income tax - Recognition of deferred

tax assets for unrealised losses'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE _F—ANE+H=+—H L4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers the impact that
adopting the amendment and new standards will have on the
consolidated financial statements are unlikely to be significant,
except that the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment and land which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 42,
the Group has non-cancellable operating leases commitments
of US$420,095,000 as at 31 December 2016, the majority of
which is payable in the second to fifth years or five years after
the reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore need
to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once IFRS 16 is adopted.

However, the Group has not yet determined to what extent
these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease

commitments on adoption of [FRS 16.

IFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its mandatory effective date.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement in
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(ii) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(iii)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Investments in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method, as

for associates (note 2.4(c)).
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policies decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are recognised initially at cost. The

cost of the investments includes transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant

influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount
of the investment including any long-term interest
that forms part thereof, is reduced to zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has

made payments on behalf of the investee.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(a) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(c) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Related parties (continued)

(ii)  the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint

ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.4(1)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common
control are accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Under the pooling-of-interests method, the
assets and liabilities of the acquiree are stated at their
historical carrying values at the date of acquisition and
the difference between the consideration transferred
for a business combination under common control
and the total of (i) the acquisition date historical
net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the
acquiree combined by the Group is accounted for as a
contribution from or a distribution to, as appropriate,
holding companies in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Accordingly, there is no goodwill
or a gain on bargain purchase as a result of a business
combination under common control. The results of the
acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property,
depreciation

plant and equipment and

Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional valuations
performed at each financial year end. Changes arising
on the revaluation of office premises are dealt with as
movements in the property revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual premise basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the

deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the valuation of the office premises over their

estimated useful lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion
of the property revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of other property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of other property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognised such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of other property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures

and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities 9% to 33.33%

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in

the period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner
occupied property becomes an investment property,
any difference between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property at the date of change in use is
accounted for as follows:

(i) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in profit or loss in the
period the change in use took place.

(ii)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount
is credited to profit or loss, to the extent the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for
that property, or restores the carrying amount
of the property to an amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount
is credited directly to equity in the property
revaluation reserve. On subsequent disposal
of the property, the relevant portion of
the property revaluation reserve realised is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

1)

(k)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent customer relationship
of the Group and are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives, from the date they
are available for use. The estimated useful lives used
for this purpose are 14-15 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land use
rights paid to governmental authorities in mainland
China and Vietnam. Land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic
livestock and are measured at their fair value less costs
of disposal, except where the fair value cannot be
measured reliably or when the costs are not materially
different from the fair value due to short production
cycle, in those cases they are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and where appropriate,

less any accumulated depreciation.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Biological assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of
biological assets at fair value less costs of disposal and
from a change in fair value less costs of disposal of
biological assets are included in profit or loss in the

period in which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase
price and any costs attributable in raising the biological

assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses,
the depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
method to write off the cost of these biological assets
over their estimated productive period of 12 months to
36 months. The expected productive period of these
biological assets is reviewed regularly, and adjusted
when appropriate. The carrying values of these
biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that

the carrying values may not be fully recoverable.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

A H

24 FEETHRBE (A

(k)

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EMEE (&)

TG e 8 W 4 2 S AFL U B L P AR B e
PR A 0 D A Ay A O A R
AR 53 Y I T E A WA R 4R T A
A I R R AR A o

PR AR A 3 L A
P ) A A T A

S 8 BA IR R TR AT R ER
{HIEHEP R0 LY G E > Preg IR E
W A W TR AT A B B 1208 A &36
fifl 7 DL T AR 3 B AR FH L o %
A B N TE AR E A e
s RER TERETHE - 2%k
iy Y R S VAT L a0 8 15 e T A T 3
MR T L T A8 R il 4 i W [l > i e AT
WAL A -

FEMEERE

A WA B 5t B B AT A B A
Wk (B E - RHEWHE - B
FOA K TR B AR Y 2 T
JIE R JE ¥ B AN o B T RE AN A Y
AT A o B AT W [ U
JE B B i 2 U B o ARl e 2 A
BV R AT P 2 A R
AR B E > PR IE %I A A e
A P S At L I 5 2 U E W B
S AR OLT > A R
T i JAB) 2 B i 2 B A e A

- -

N FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EFER

A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39, other than
derivatives, are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus

transaction cost.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in “Other
income, net” in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in “General and

administrative expenses” in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

(it)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated at

fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
investments are subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(m)

RERHMEREE (H)

H&: 8 (&)

(it)

] B

A Z R Ik LR
B 2 R A S E - 5
2 AT A3k A 2 B AR % G IO S
BB 2 15 4 B IR AR AE 2
W e AR AR E B

H W 8G HE a8 AR > AT A 2 4
HHRUNRMEG R > RS
B W i B s 4R 008 T 4 o B 4
A 6L fo 4 i 2 7 L At 2 T MK
RN E TR e g SN A
AN TS SR E Y KV
i 2 AL AR > REE
% B W R A A -
IhF 2Rt ik B 4R B AT A
B A ek 4 b Rl B4R AR
TR -

HIELWRERSEEZ A RES
REF SEHGH RN (a) REIERY
fili 5F & B AU fE A AR T OK
W B (b) A8 i N A% R
fili A AT HE RS BE £ BE M Al
e R AG B4 S > JI% S 4%
5 78 DA SR 10 Bk AT ] 90 £ s 4
FIf o

2 - XN F F R

97



98

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

N

B

24 FEETHRBE (A

(m) RERHEMTBMEE ()

e

2SR [0 7 A R 90 e A A R A
AT Ao 2 B e v W — T e AL
P CE o — I B A4l A R
0 UK Tt e S AR W A — JH Bk % T A
(T84 [ R ] B30 B % B
it R BN A > B e R I IR
ol — ALl E Al W 2 R AR B A A Y
5 BERE T SE MG FEIE > O B B ol
TUAR o A R T L9 AT 6 5 R
R B N B — AL 85 N\ A6 R K B 5 1
B~ 3% S ) A R B A 4 > A
B N T RERS A SO AT I A B A
AR ] S Rk B Al st AR AR B T
Tat AR > ) o A B e B
HIA B RS Lt B A )

(i) PSR SMR Z 4 it A
B DL 6 B A B B 2 4 ik
FE > ACHE [ S 4 ST A A
EAHE s EWEE (G
A8 ) TR ) R 7 A AE kA R
LR R o 0 SR AC AR e A A )
A Al 4 il B 2 A A7 AE I fE % B
i (i i TR B AT ) - HE
% JE B O\ — AL B B
TRl Z S il A A > S 36 [
Al AL o 815 R Al ol S A
T 8 A A 9 A R 2
BEA T I 6] RF Al B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

- -

N FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future

recovery.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to “General and administrative

expenses” in profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(m)

RERHMERMEE (F)

e (A&)

(i)

VLY & B AR B R 2 4 i A
(#1)

A EFBRRE R EET B
WA K > RSB DL E
Py R T BRL A it R 2R B 9
BN BHAREENRRE R
R VL4 i 2 2 5 IR A K
AR (R AE B0 4k o 388 IR w53 Y
AR ) B BLE 2 28
wtHE o Jn SRR B DL AT A R SR Gt
B o wH AT T A A R T B
3K 2 A B AR o

A B A R T L L 4
B 3 8 A R 2R R >
BN H 45 R o FE I
N F5 AR 45 9 M T A
JA DA SRR 45 R R 4 B
AR B B S i PR o A T B b
S 486 T BE Y H AR W sk o B
B B I WSk S A0 AT ] AH B A
IR R M T M

IR AR AR > Al IR A IR
P < T PR 2 D T AR B 2
=55 JEL 1T 3 hn v A o B S I
i TR L s 4 1A 389 T 8 A VT 7
A0 A 41K U 2AC ) 2 o L L AR
W Tml > i Tk I AR 25 o
Z[ATBO R BB -

2 - XN F F R

99



100

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #% BH B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets

are not reversed.

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value

For available-for-sale investments carried at fair
value, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of

investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit
or loss, is removed from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve and recognised

in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair

value (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in the available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Derecognition (continued)

(ii)

the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights

and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.

A H

24 FEETHRBE (A

(m)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RERHEMEMEE (F)

HKILTERR ()

(i)  AHEE OO A B 4
Z RER Bk O AR I B AT [ A | &2
BET 2 BEAL A8 & e 3] B

S (AR BHE=F 3 &
(a) ACHR M O 2 2 MK
VA e e B L > e (b) AR
VA IR S o 7 R B R 2 AR
R A TR e B e o AEL
% Z YRR o

R A 45 1 L A OB
& Z BER B TR oL AT &
P> AR EFEAL A TR B
B 7 W Je o % e i A R
AR BRARR L > A 45 1 BE
R IR JHE R P AR R
JE i B T o I S
PEwIRE » ZE IR Z
TR 2 BT DA - AE b
VLT > AL B 5 e e — JEL A
Wi 4450 o o el N M 3L o) W
BT HRACHE B AR B Z W R
FAL R Ay DG & o

U DR O Ot P 8 S A
B 28> )5 DL IR I E K
A AR [ 75 A AR AR e e <
2 BAKE -

- -

N FF R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39, other
than derivatives, are classified as loans and borrowings.
The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

“Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,

or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
deferred income at its fair value, and is amortised in
profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee as income
from guarantee issued. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information

is obtainable.

Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised to the category of asset in accordance with
the Group’s policies. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

Provision are recognised if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in deferred income in respect
of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,

less accumulated amortisation.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the
weighted average basis, and net realisable value after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs”

in profit or loss.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

Provisions (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the guidance for revenue recognition.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Income tax (continued)

(ii) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

(u)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the period that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:
(i) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(iv)  dividend income, when the equity holders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by using the Black-Scholes pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 36 to the financial

statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or

service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.
Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, subsidiaries of the Group in mainland
China are required to make specific contributions
to the state-controlled retirement plan at rates not
more than 20% (the percentage to be determined by
each of the government of the provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees in mainland China. Certain provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities are overburdened
by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 20% (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government of the
provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of
the total salaries of the employees upon approval of
the ministry of labour and the ministry of finance.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired employees. The employees of
the subsidiaries are entitled to a monthly pension at
their retirement dates. The subsidiaries have no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the

annual contributions.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(v)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued
at the end of each reporting period for Vietnamese
employees who have more than 12 months in service
up to 31 December 2008 at the rate of one-half of
the average monthly salary for each year of service
up to 31 December 2008 in accordance with the
Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and related
implementing guidance in Vietham. Commencing from
1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in
this calculation is revised at the end of each reporting
period using the average monthly salary of the 6-month
period up to the reporting date. Any changes to the
accrued amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from
1 January 2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam
and its employees are required to contribute to
an unemployment insurance fund managed by the
Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The contribution
to be paid by each party is calculated at 1% of the
lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the
Vietnam government from time to time. With the
implementation of the unemployment insurance
scheme, the Group is no longer required to provide
severance allowance for the service period after
1 January 2009.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual
cost of the related borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(aa)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits or
contributed surplus within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United
States dollar, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period and differences are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the United States dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into United States dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries, which arise
throughout the year are translated into United States
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ab)

(ac)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic, operating and/or
other characteristics. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations, or is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is

a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation
and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting

the discontinued operation.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Notes 15(d), 16(b), 18(e), 27(b) and 30(b) contain
information about the assumptions relating to valuation
of office premises, investment properties, biological assets
and derivative financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainties are as follows:
(a) Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment loss of the
Group’s trade receivables is based on the evaluation
of collectability and the aging analysis of the trade
receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be

required.
(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates its property, plant and
equipment on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, and after taking into account of
their estimated residual values, at rates ranging from
2% to 33.33% per annum, commencing from the date
the property, plant and equipment are available for use.
The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment available
for use reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and

equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount when events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of
the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash generating
unit to which they belong, is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at the
reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal. For the
estimation of value in use, the Group’s management
estimates future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging
analysis of its inventories at each reporting date,
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a
product by product basis at each reporting date and
makes allowances for obsolete items.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(e) Provision for guarantee

Provision for guarantee are recognised if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and
the amount of that claim on the Group is measured
at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure
require to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date, and the amount initially recognised as deferred
income less cumulative amortisation. The Group
carries out regular review on the creditability of its
customers which the Group has provided guarantee
for. A provision is made based on the assessment on
the probability of cash outflow to settle the obligation
under the guarantee. The ultimate liability due may
vary from the amounts provided and will be dependent

upon the eventual outcome of any settlement.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

On 29 June 2015, the Group spun-off its biochemical and
industrial businesses under Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited (“CTEI”) (the “Discontinued Operations”) via a
distribution in specie. The Group, after the spin-off, continues
to operate three operating segments, namely the China
agri-food segment, the Vietnam agri-food segment and the
investment and property holding segment (collectively referred

to as the “Continuing Operations”).

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following reportable operating segments based on their

products and services:
Continuing operations
o the China agri-food segment is engaged in the

manufacture and sale of animal feed and value-added,

processed food products in the PRC;
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Continuing operations (continued)

o the Vietnam agri-food segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of animal feed products, breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
the manufacture and sale of value-added, processed

food products in Vietnam; and

° the investment and property holding segment is
engaged in leasing properties owned by the Group and

investments in group companies.
Discontinued operations

° the biochemical segment is engaged in the manufacture

and sale of chlortetracycline products; and

o the industrial segment is engaged in trading of
machinery, and the manufacture and sale of automotive

parts.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance

costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, corporate bond,
income tax payables and deferred tax liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFIWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) TWERLKESE
The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and DNTFHRERAEE R AR RS
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information Z A BB SENEE NS
for the Group’s reportable operating segments from K _E—HFE+_H=Z+—HILFE
continuing operations for the years ended 31 December NZWA -~ BIREAETEE  AER
2016 and 2015. BH % Bt o
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ-NET_H=ZF—HIREE
Investment
China Vietnam  and property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
LT -1¢ WRRE RERWE
£ REH BREH sk
US$’°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000
FFr FiwFr #Fi FiFr
Segment revenue AEBA
Sales to external customers HETHREF 3,034,712 2,246,356 125 5,281,193
Segment results AEER
The Group AR 211,651 234,860 (7,043) 439,468
Share of profits and losses of: JE Al ¥ A s 1 -
Joint ventures ABLE 4,129 - - 4,129
Associates /| 11,091 - - 11,091
226,871 234,860 (7,043) 454,688
Reconciliation: WA
Bank interest income ST BB 3,259
Finance costs M RA (35,473)
Profit before tax I 3 1 36 422,474
Other segment information A4 BE B
Depreciation and amortisation 78 T 3 48,787 74,057 601 123,445
Capital expenditure® 2N B 184,120 48,675 11 232,806
Additions of other non-current assets™* 3 Hi3tAtb I 3 ) i 268,908 45,059 - 313,967
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment * BIEWE ~ WBF R R AT

and land lease prepayments, but excluding assets from

acquisition of subsidiaries.

w3 Including additions to (i) non-current assets from

acquisition of subsidiaries, and (ii) additions to non-

current biological assets and other non-current assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (HF)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKEDIE(E)

At 31 December 2016 R_E—AET+T_H=1+—H

Investment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
H B A WRERN  RERDE
TS T e okl
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
i FEi i ETe FErL i
Segment assets B R 2,068,481 1,047,506 497,166 3,613,153
Reconciliation: JAWEH
Elimination of intersegment receivables 434 [l 2 & e 2
fH (452,689)
Unallocated assets RAOBE E 472,961
Total assets H% g 3,633,425
Segment liabilities AR 979,376 181,319 3,107 1,163,802
Reconciliation: HEEE
Elimination of intersegment payables I 2 AT R B (452,689)
Unallocated liabilities AL H K 1,503,564
Total liabilities A G 2,214,677
Other segment information HibnEER
[nvestments in joint ventures NEBLENRE 19,289 - - 19,289
Investments in associates RS AT NG 105,279 - - 105,279
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(a)

4

Reportable operating segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015

B

rasBERN (H)
(a) TE2HMEEDEH)

RE-Z-LET A= HIEEE

[nvestment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R R AR BRERME
B mEH BMES VIR ET: A
US$000 US$°000 US$'000 US$000
FIL T FIL T FrTr Fr T
Segment revenue AEBRA
Sales to external customers WEPIKRE R 3,033,242 2,096,451 125 5,129,818
Segment results PHER
The Group AR 203,627 225,758 (8,972) 420,413
Share of profits and losses of: JE Al ) K s 1
Joint ventures Al pE 3,679 - - 3,679
Associate Bt & Wl 11,352 - - 11,352
218,658 225,158 (8,972) 435,444
Reconciliation: AERIER -
Bank interest income BATH BB 4,428
Finance costs W AR (39,121)
Profit before tax W 58 i 383 400,751
Other segment information HAb 3 46 % B
Depreciation and amortisation e K 37,543 70,179 631 108,353
Capital expenditure® B 3 295,636 51,141 332 347,109
Additions of other non-current assets** 3 3 3 iy IF 37 ) 5 g+ - 73,709 - 73,709
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment * BREYE ~ W B i X AT Lt
and land lease prepayments. MERZH -
ok Including additions to non-current biological assets o 15 I B 3 A R Al R i B

and other non-current assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (HF)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEHRKLEDE (M)

At 31 December 2015 W _E—HET_H=1+—H

[nvestment
and
China Vietnam property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R B4 AR BRERME
BmEE RMES VeI ET: A
US$’000 US$000 US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FrL T Fr T Eomon
Segment assets NEERE 1,487,861 1,057,581 401,620 2,947,062
Reconciliation: AERIEN -
Elimination of intersegment receivables /3% [l 2 JiE We 2k HE &Y (367,617)
Unallocated assets A K 548,418
Total assets HK g 3,127,863
Segment liabilities 2 B LR 791,878 193,530 8,863 994,271
Reconciliation: HERIEAE
Elimination of intersegment payables I 22 REAT B 8 (367,617)
Unallocated liabilities R K 1,185,327
Total liabilities FARER 1,811,981
Other segment information HoAth 2 HE B
Investments in joint ventures NEBLENRE 19,669 - - 19,669
[nvestments in associate PGS AT RE 48,200 - - 48,200
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Geographical information

(i)

(i)

Revenue from external customers from

B AR

N

4

B

ReETEEN R

(b) HEER

(i) KREHBEEEBIREFZ

continuing operations KA
2016 2015
SRR CRGA
US$’000 US$’000
FEFic FEoL L
Mainland China o B K e 3,039,619 3,037,771
Vietnam A 2,167,119 2,012,673
Elsewhere Al 3 5 74,455 79,374
5,281,193 5,129,818
The revenue information shown above is based EFWAE R TG % P i A
on the location of the customers. S8 o
Non-current assets (i)  HREBEE
2016 2015
SEAE B RA
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve FILFIT
Mainland China o 3k pe 1,438,180 1,050,217
Vietnam 8 T 435,008 430,148
Elsewhere FHC Al s 5 39,020 31,680
1,912,208 1,512,045
The non-current assets information shown FHZ IR EEER I RE
above is based on the location of assets and S T A b A S8 o SiE R AL G RT 4
excludes available-for-sale investments and HMEZRE KIELERIEEE -

deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,

there was no single customer that contributed 10%

or more of the Group’s total revenue from continuing

operations.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANFET_H=1—HILFEE
REVENUE 5 KA
Revenue from continuing operations, represents: (i) the HEAFHELEEGZWATR (1) BWAER &
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value- BB g > RIMBIBE RE Sk 4
added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances ST s & (i) EEBE Y EER
for goods returned and trade discounts; and (ii) rental income EHENHERA -
from investment and property holding operations.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHWT :
2016 2015
“E N R S TR S
US$’000 US$’000
FxTx Fx T
Sales of goods from: SHERMKIEE
China agri-food operations B R AR E TS
— Feed business — R B 2,899,040 3,031,557
— Food business —_BAMER 135,672 1,685
Vietnam agri-food operations R AR
— Feed business — R 878,151 831,558
— Farm business T 1,227,079 1,129,038
— Food business STEY 141,126 135,855
5,281,068 5,129,693
Rental income from investment and property BERMEERELZ
holding operations FHE WA 125 125
5,281,193 5,129,818
NET CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF 6 EYMEEARBEZEBFE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Net changes in fair value of biological assets represent the
difference in fair value less costs of disposal from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016. Net fair value changes consist
of (i) realised fair value changes of US$86,644,000 (2015:
US$82,351,000) in respect of biological assets held as at
1 January 2016 and (ii) unrealised fair value changes in
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal as at

31 December 2016 of US$53,635,000 (2015: US$89,305,000).
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B AMEREARBEZ B FHEINEA
CE-ANE-A-HEZZ-AE+TZA
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HZEFHABEOR T —AFE—H—
HEAMEMBEEZCERARMZET
8,664.4# 350 (B —H 4 : 8,235. 1 3K 0)
(iR ZF—AET+H=Z+—HUA AME
VIR B AR B e W A R R B Rl
Z 5 H)5,363.58 0 (ZF—H4F  8,930.54
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

7

OTHER INCOME, NET 7

An analysis of other income, net from continuing operations is

as follows:

H it W A 5 58

PR AR B Z A A F AT -

2016 2015
SEAE SRR
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T FxL T
Bank interest income HATH B WA 3,259 4,428
Other interest income HAbF BB A 5,845 6,010
Rental income HMEBRA 2,797 2,442
Government grants BURF il BY 5,261 3,808
Gain on relocation of factories TR 28 Uk %5 8,794 17,785
Income from sales of consumables and packaging &£ ¥4 M £ 2 44 Bl
materials KA 3,693 3,745
Net changes in fair value of derivative 4T HARME
financial instruments 5 Bl 5,214 2,009
Net changes in fair value of investment TGN folE 5 B
properties (note 16) (Ff=E16) (272) (1,675)
Gain on disposal of land lease prepayments HEFEAM L E & Z WS - 1,025
Foreign exchange differences, net AW BT 5 2 B R (6,303) (9,811)
Others Aty 1,507 2,834
29,795 32,600

Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives
from the government in respect of certain investments of
the Group in the agricultural industry and areas promoted
by the government in mainland China. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.
Government grants received for which related expenditure has
not yet been undertaken are included in deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position (notes 30 and

33).
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

FINANCE COSTS 8 B 3% B A<
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as HHERBEERZMBERARSHWT
follows:
2016 2015
ZE N ZE DA
US$’000 US$’000
F T FIL T
Interest expense on bank borrowings SRATME R Z N B2 H 53,383 55,252
Interest expense on corporate bond EEHFZFESEH 768 -
Less: Interest expense capitalised* W AB AR (18,678) (16,131)
35,473 39,121

Interest expense was capitalised at a rate of 3.1%-6.3% per
annum (2015: 3.3%-8.5%).
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Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—XETH=1—HILFEE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 RR B4 Al % R
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is NCAUEST Pt 3y Ry FSEi ]
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (FFA) T4 -
2016 2015
TR N I S RS
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wik B Vv a7 En
Cost of inventories sold O B 77 B A 4,348,607 4,225,347
Depreciation of property, plant and L E RN Y & ]
equipment 2 15 89,086 75,868
Amortisation of land lease prepayments FE AT A 1 FHL 5 B B B 17 3,588 3,117
Depreciation of biological assets stated at &AL B 51 H18 &
cost less accumulated depreciation and W RE IR
impairment g2 Yies 18 28,174 26,623
Amortisation of intangible assets TR ik 4 19 2,597 2,745
Impairment of trade receivables, net JRE W B 5 W sk Dok AFL i 26(a) 952 5,335
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant  HE¥ ¥ - B = Mk
and equipment, net W18 (e ) B A 199 (486)
Minimum lease payments of leasehold R b B3k ~ W5 I
land and properties, plant and WA 2 BB Z Rk
machinery under operating lease ME &% 51,591 45,688
Auditors’ remuneration A% 385 Bl T 4 1,487 1,958
Employee benefit expenses (including fE Bt A 2 (BfE#EF
directors’ emoluments — note 10): 4 — Bff5E10)
— Wages, salaries and benefits in kind - TH) -~ HEMEHE
Ak 328,883 320,566
— Pension scheme contributions — Bk &t 22,686 26,383
351,569 346,949
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _~E—ANFE+ _H=+—H L4 E

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 EE=EME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) HIBEE A BRG] E383 (DR L AT (T
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the A 25 ERE) BB SE L E > EE A B
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
HW -
HH R
we  ERENE  RKEER 4 aH
Note US§$°000 US§$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US§$°000
Wi EIL TR B i Eywon Em o EIL T
Year ended 31 December 2016 | E I
FEAZ R EERE
Executive directors: PR
Mt. Dhanin Chearavanont R R A - 1,181 - - 1,181
Mr. Adirek Sripratak Eiy kL - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont LN %A - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin AR - 759 9 320 1,088
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt JiumjaiswanglergJg - 657 - - 657
Mr. Anan Athigapanich WERRA (i) - 744 - 122 866
Mt. Suphachai Chearavanont W - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan& £ - - - - -
. 3,341 9 2 3,792
Non-executive directors: FoTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont E B ok - - - - -
M. Yoichi Ikezoe TRk - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHTES :
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew BB 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresfg 2 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJ6 24 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej 64 31 - - - 31
Mas. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimooktayonZ&4: 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments Rl k] 155 3,341 9 442 3,947
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130

(iii) Resigned as executive director on 3 July 2015

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

#F

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 EEM< (E)
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
i -
TG R
e FBeNE REKSHER 4 Faki)
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
H# FiFr FILFr Fifr Fifr Fifr
Year ended 31 December 2015 ®E_ZF—H4+-H=+—H
I35
Executive directors: TES:
M. Dhanin Chearavanont R A - 1,179 - - 1,179
Mr. Adirek Sripratak oy s - - - - -
M. Thanakorn Seriburi RO (iit) - 246 - - 246
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont LRIV %S - - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HERLE - 801 10 N 1,133
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg  Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg¥4: - 563 - 4 637
Mr. Anan Athigapanich HERLA (i) - 832 - 129 961
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont EiE - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananank £ - - - - -
- 3,621 10 525 4156
Non-executive directors: FoTES:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont EibX s - - , _ _
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe iRE— % (i) - - - - -
Independent non-executive L NE = Vif
directors:
Mr. Ma Chiu Cheung, Andrew  JEBFESA: 31 - - - 31
M. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isresfeA: 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJ&4 31 - - - 31
M. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej J 2 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimooktayonZ& 1: 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments HHMEEH 155 3,621 10 525 4311
Notes: M it
(i) Resigned as executive director on 16 January 2017 (i) W _R—tE—H A HELRITESR
(ii) Appointed as non-executive director on 15 October 2015 (ii) W I A B R R IERAT

(iii) WMoF—HEELHZHEHLHGHES
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _~E—ANFE+ _H=+—H L4 E

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 EEBME (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no emoluments NBRE-Z—NFEF+_HAH=+—HILFEE
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to A A B NI I S A T 4 AR EE T 0 DL i AR
join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of A5 13 B A i A\ A S W AR B A I IR 5 4 2 el
office (2015: nil), and there was no arrangement under which (T —F4F 2 %) » JF 3 6 3 i B el ]
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2015: HBRELEMMESZ R (R —F4E ) -

nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

11 HENVERSHFMES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two N UL R BT E B B (2R — T

(2015: three) directors. Details of their emoluments are set A 34n) B > KN4 2 5 TR bk

out in note 10 above. The emoluments of the remaining three Fif 5510 o SR T3 (B —F4F : 24n) JEE T
(2015: two) non-directors are as follows: ZMEmMT .

2016 2015

ZE A B S TGS

US$’000 US$’000

F Tt FIL T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind F ~ A R IEBL AR 2% 2,309 1,654

Bonus #E 4 958 644

3,267 2,298

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose B IEE R B W N\ IR DL T 400 4

remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below: mF:

2016 2015

2N IC S K2

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

1E&HH EAHH

US$903,000 to US$968,000 (equivalent to
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000)

US$1,032,000 to US$1,097,000 (equivalent to
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

US$1,097,000 to US$1,161,000 (equivalent to
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)

US$1,161,000 to US$1,226,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000)

903,0005% 7t £ 968,0003& J&

(FH % 27,000,001 #% ¢ &

7,500,000% 78 ) 1 -
1,032,0003% 76 %1,097,0003¢

JC (FH & 148,000,001 7t =

8,500,000%% 7T ) - 1
1,097,0003% 76 £1,161,0003& 76

(FH % 28,500,001 #% T &

9,000,000 7T ) 1 -
1,161,000 G % 1,226,000

JC (K & #£9,000,001 3 ¢ =

9,500,000% 7T 1 1
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Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—XETH=1—HILFEE
11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 EuNESFMES (&)
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no emoluments was RERE R NETH=Z+—HILERE >
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees of 7 4 [ 3 90 S A T 4 A B R AR B 2 AT
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group fal—Ar > DL A\ AR 4 [ B A i O\ A 4 [
as compensation for loss of office (2015: nil). IREAE B firf B Mok 75 48 R # A8 (2015 ¢ ) o
12 INCOME TAX 12 FiBst
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the A A [ 7 A 4R B R A AR TV IR EUAT: ] HE R B
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in W > B DA AR B A 4R B8 TN 1 7 o ) 5 50 138 45
Hong Kong during the year (2015: nil). (B —HAE ) -
The subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Vietnam are subject AR5 v [ B R A 2E S BB - R M AR
to income tax at the rate of 25% (2015: 25%) and 20% (2015: w2z M o\ Rt e RE SRR WO 4 B R AR
22%) respectively on their taxable income according to the 5% (ZF—HA  25%) K20% (ZF—H
PRC and Vietnam corporate income tax laws. In accordance A2 22%) SRR BT AR o AR b R B R RE 2 A
with the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC and A A0 25 < S T 3k ) A TR I R MR
Vietnam, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and HTHE AR ZH B Rl B SR o
Vietnam enjoy various income tax exemptions or reductions.
2016 2015
BN e S k2
US$’000 US$’000
FL Tt FIL T
Current — the PRC N s
Charge for the year NG 55,198 61,238
Over-provision in prior years fE4EZ 5T (7,084) (7,099)
Current — Vietnam AR — R
Charge for the year AAEFE S 38,381 30,065
Deferred (note 34) PE AL (Pt 5E34) 6,500 1,772
Total tax expense from continuing AAE AR A FR RS B
operations for the year Z BLIE A 3 92,995 91,976
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense from continuing

operations applicable to profit before tax at the statutory tax

rates for the PRC and Vietnam in which the Group principally

operates to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a

reconciliation of the applicable tax rates (i.e. statutory tax

rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

12 FriS® (&)

2o I R M (A4 ) 2 S R M) WY k2
Bt A S B DU AT SO R B e R A A
S 085 3t A AR B o O B R (B 3k
EBR) BHBBRZ MM EZIIWMT ¢

2016 2015
RN S S
US$’000 % US$000 %
FIL T FEIL T

Profit before tax Bk i ¥ A 422,474 400,751
Tax expense at statutory tax rate W ERRFENRE Tl 93,150 22.0 88,606 22.1
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or b A8 B R B S JR ALAf

enacted by local tax authority ZIRIRALR (14,627) (3.5) (19,439) (4.9)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the TRASEE A T 2 [ A

distributable profit of LA LA S

the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC 10%Z 52 8,395 2.0 11,034 2.8
Effect of withholding tax on technical Bt R & 2 B B

service fee 3,198 0.8 0,964 1.7
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AREEA B DA 4 JE BT

prior years ik (7,084) (1.7) (7,099) (1.7
Profits and losses attributable to joint e Y = Gk

ventures and associates L EH (2,964) (0.7) (2,793) 0.7
Income not subject to tax e B (3,208) (0.8) (2,258) (0.6)
Expenses not deductible for tax YKL S 9,270 2.2 11,857 3.0
Tax losses not recognised RERAREEH 6,980 1.7 4,499 1.1
Tax losses from prior years utilised BRI AR R s 1R (198) (0.0) (72) (0.0)
Others Hib 83 0.0 671 0.2
Tax expense at the Group’s effective TR A YBRG AR

tax rate B 92,995 22.0 91,976 23.0

The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures

and associates from continuing operations amounting to
US$1,366,000 (2015: US$1,410,000) and US$5,180,000
(2015: US$4,554,000), respectively, are included in “Share of

profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” on the face

of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE
2016 2015
S
US$’000 US$’000
B an E<ne o
Interim — HK$0.024 (equivalent to B — B B R &
approximately US 0.310 cents) (2015: A ¥ 4 S B 0.024 48 o8
HK$0.017 (equivalent to approximately (FH A £0.310%A41)
US 0.219 cents)) per ordinary share and (ZF—F4 2 0.017H# T
convertible preference share (FH A £90.21934410) ) 78,450 55,569
Special interim dividend by way of a 7598 B W) 4 IRk 2 5 B
distribution in specie" B B - 151,272
Proposed final — HK$0.016 (equivalent to HEAY — SRS E R &
approximately US 0.206 cents) (2015: W 4 S 1 0.01 648 I8
HK$0.021 (equivalent to approximately (FH 25 1 #90.2063 A1)
US 0.271 cents)) per ordinary share and ZE R 0.021# 0
convertible preference share? (FHAE R £90.271340) ) @ 52,300 68,644
130,750 275,485

(2)

On 17 April 2015, the board of directors of the Company
declared a conditional special interim dividends of 1 CTEI
ordinary share for every 100 CPP ordinary shares held in the
Company and 1 CTEI preference share for every 100 CPP
preference shares held in the Company to CPP shareholders
on the register of members as at the close of business on
29 June 2015. Fractional entitlements were disregarded.
The entire issued share capital of CTEI was spun-off via a

distribution in specie and CTEI was separately listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3 July 2015.

Distribution of non-cash assets (which constitute a business)
that is ultimately controlled by the same parties before and
after the distribution is measured at book value of the non-

cash assets.

The net assets attributable to the distribution in specie of an
aggregate of 240,718,310 CTEI ordinary shares and 12,610,777
CTEI preference shares were US$151,272,000.

The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
total amount of the proposed final dividend was calculated
based on the number of shares in issue on the date of this

annual report.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14 EAFARREGEZERER
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the B I T AR 35 B =2 B A T 3 A AN ) e R RE Al A%
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company A B Y P B AR 9 OB AT 2 2 T R T e sk A
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and 56 I8 R ST 25 B o
convertible preference shares in issue during the year.
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on 5 % B8R P =2 RO T AR O ) B R A AR
the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the A P Y5 ) B AR O ] T B AT Pt e A8 2 B
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares REF- 35 SOt 5 o Pt 2 0% i % ) 4 I 4
and convertible preference shares used in the basic earnings 56 Ik Z 0 RE S 2 SOk TR R 5 AR ik A 3
per share calculation, adjusted to reflect the weighted average BE > 3R WAR B T A L A 2 R RE DA
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at nil FRE BT W2 R o
consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive share
options of the Company.
Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per B —-NER R —HETH=Z1—
share as there were no dilutive potential shares in existence H 1k 48 B » A 2\ W) oF % 2 A 38 9 68 0 i i
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. By > WO R R A i ) B A R A v P A IR
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based B FE A S BE RS A AR IR DL S B EE A .
on the following data:
2016 2015
ZE N e K
US$’000 US$’000
B FILFT
Earnings i A
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders FHR 5 A I R AR
of the Company, used in the basic and diluted HEFERE A 2 A A F]
earnings per share calculation, JBe AR A AR ¥ )
arising from: A :
Continuing operations FRE R 260,278 242,497
Discontinuing operations ORI - 25,078
260,278 267,575
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 14 ZFQFRREL SRR (F)
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
2016 2015
RN “R TR
Number of ordinary shares and W 308 5 B mT o i A S e B
convertible preference shares
Weighted average number of ordinary FHTA w5 e B A B B Wi ) 2
shares and convertible preference shares A ELBEAT 5 I B mT e 4B
in issue during the year, used in the TR S 34 8
basic and diluted earnings per share
calculation 25,332,914,980 25,332,914,980
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B 7% R & Mt =
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E ~F—XNET A=+ —HILFEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -BEKRZE
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and and office and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
R RER R
G4 &3 THMT R Bt HARME ot TRIR ek
Note US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
Wit Eomen b Frtr Fr T Fr T FrTr Eomen
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (d)) and (c))
(Wita)R(d)  (Wikb)R(c) (Hit(e)
At 1 January 2016: e i 3
i
Valuation fif 45,204 - - - - - 45,204
Cost A - 602,634 687,853 129,159 29,852 306,520 1,756,018
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTE Rl
impairment - (198,432) (319,278) (80,436) (20,938) - (619,084)
Net carrying amount i 45,204 404,202 368,575 48,723 8,914 306,520 1,182,138
Net carrying amount: [
At 1 January 2016 BEF—NE
—J—H 45,204 404,202 368,575 48,723 8,914 306,520 1,182,138
Additions WE - 17,151 12,771 13,761 2,460 181,964 228,107
Surplus on revaluation, net Eitipedd 13,133 - - - - - 13,133
Acquisition of subsidiaries i B 2 38 - 90,484 26,409 2,625 586 11,158 131,262
Depreciation provided during AR
the year 9 (939) (30,371) (38,995) (15,938) (2,843) - (89,086)
Transfer in/(out) A/ () - 39,308 56,117 3,154 411 (99,090) -
Transfer from investment HARENE
properties 16 1,625 - - - - - 1,625
Disposals s - (691) (963) (286) (247) - (2,187)
Exchange realignment HE 3t (908) (19,656) (20,628) (1,634) (524) (22,415) (65,765)
At 31 December 2016 RER-AE
+ZA=+—H 58,115 500,427 403,286 50,505 8,757 378,137 1,399,227
At 31 December 2016: i Y3
FIHER
Valuation Ttk 58,115 - - - - - 58,115
Cost A - 717,081 738,156 141,465 29,483 378,137 2,004,322
Accumulated depreciation and R Rl
impairment - (216,654) (334,870) (90,960) (20,726) - (663,210)
Net carrying amount W T A 58,115 500,427 403,286 50,505 8,757 378,137 1,399,227
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E R —ANF T _H=1—H ILFEJE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% BERRE (E)
(continued)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and and office and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
R RER ik
[[Ed 54 TEBT TR BB 2 L] Tk kR ek
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Wit Eomon Fomon FEr Fr Eomyn Fi T oo
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (d)) and (c))
(it R(d) (W) E() (Hitv)
At 1 January 2015: /A S K3
—“A—H:
Valuation e 43,086 - - - - - 43,086
Cost Bk - 520918 597,420 129,053 31,998 385,021 1,664,410
Accumulated depreciation and BT R
impairment - (191,937) (348,615) (75,325) (20,438) - (636,315)
Net carrying amount R 43,086 328,981 248,805 53,728 11,560 385,021 1,071,181
Net carrying amount: JRTH 4 -
At 1 January 2015 REF—T4E
—~A—H 43,086 318,981 248,805 53,128 11,560 385,021 1,071,181
Continuing operations RAREER
Additions WE - 14872 15,335 12,252 1,690 245,490 289,639
Surplus on revaluation, net ThFER 3,000 - - - - - 3,600
Depreciation provided during the year AR 9 (896) (25,636) (30,701) (15,405) (3,230) - (75,868)
Transfer in/(out) A/ (1) - 121,013 182,661 3,48 3 (307,165) -
Transfer from investment properties WHGEmE 16 - 155 - - - - 155
Disposals it - (741) (1,649) (329) (173) - (2,892)
Exchange realignment [ SR (586) (18,149) (15,546) (2,413) (434) (15,232) (52,360)
Discontinued operations CRILAEEHK
Additions W - 603 576 11 16 1,274 2,690
Depreciation provided during the period 8 747 # - (751) (1,865) (237) (127) - (2,980)
Transfer in/(out) #A/ (1) - 4,788 (4,408) (50) (29) (301) -
Disposals e - - (92) - () - (95)
Exchange realignment [ - 13 ) 1 - 3 39
Distribution in specie Bk 39 - (20,946) (24,563) (2,293) (599) (2,510) (50,971)
At 31 December 2015 REF— T
+ZA=+—H 45,204 404,202 368,575 48,13 8914 306,520 1,182,138
At 31 December 2015: e S
+ZAEt-R
Valuation i 45,204 - - - - - 45,204
Cost Bk - 602,634 687,853 129,159 29,852 306,520 1,756,018
Accumulated depreciation and R R
impairment - (198,432) (319,278) (80,436) (20,938) - (619,084)
Net carrying amount I 45,204 404,202 368,575 48,13 8,914 306,520 1,182,138
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B EFER

»

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises

were stated at open market values.

Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount of the
premises at the end of the reporting period would have been

US$4,739,000 (2015: US$5,146,000).

The revaluation surplus of US$12,343,000 (2015:
US$3,122,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the

Group during the year, net of deferred tax (note 34).

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in mainland China with an aggregate net
carrying amount of US$59,542,000 (2015: nil) were pledged to

secure certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 31(a)).

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s industrial buildings with
an aggregate net carrying amount of US$94,924,000 (2015:
US$62,079,000) have not yet obtained ownership certificates.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

(i)

N 4 B A R o 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E R —ANF T _H=1—H ILFEJE
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -BREEZE (&)
Mtk o (4F)
Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) Y3k~ B B M WA SO AR R

Fair value hierarchy (i) AR Z R

Fair values are categorized into three-level fair 2 FAE T AR R I I B o o ) AR

value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair value 13SRA R 75 B =AU - 2

measurement. The level into which a fair value ol Z B 43 i TS 2% A48 D7 B3

measurement is classified is determined by reference i 2 oy w8 5% T e R ORI
to the observability and significance of the inputs used E s SR

in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active SR 2 A ERE H AR5 B
markets for identical assets or liabilities at Il ¥ 7 B E AR Y A
the measurement date. (A AEAT FHH) -

Level 2: Observable inputs which fails to meet BN ARSI R B
Level 1, and not using unobservable B2 REAHEHAR
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for BN 2 o A
which market data are not available. 2R A T 5

WA 20 -

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs. BEAN c BRARRBIENS2Y -

The following table presents the fair value of the TESNTRBMEPRAREEZY

Group’s property, plant and equipment measured at 3~ B Bk AR R R R

the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, N FUAR - 3 B B A R R 13

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as AT 7 Z T T = -

defined in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.
Fair value measurement

as at 31 December categorised into

RTZHA=+— A RMEEEZ 38
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B8 BH0N B0 s
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Frfx  FxFr - FrFr - FLTr

2016 SR N

Office premises EEI =S - - 58,115 58,115

2015 —F T

Office premises LE SR - - 45,204 45,204
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE -BERRZE(E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt > (4F)
(d) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) Y~ B M i A B RN R ()
(continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) ARG Z R ()

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,

there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy

is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques

used in the determination of fair values within Level

3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable

inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type
it

Office premises in Hong Kong

RLTR 7 5 Y T A T

Office premises in mainland China

AR v I 0K e i 7 S A

Valuation technique

il 105 ¥

Market comparison approach

5 L v

Market comparison approach

i 45 Pe e

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BEE-AERE L4
H=E4 IR > BHEE— R
SN Z 2 RS > BB A B
AR =3 o AR [ 2 BOSR TSI
) SR 2 01 A v A ] 2
%o

R S = AU 4 SRR R
IR PR ] Z A6 AE 5 5 B A B A
KM AT BEN 2 -

Key unobservable inputs

FHBEN 2

Estimated price of US$38,719
(2015: US$31,251) per square metre
BV J5 Kk Z Al wHE A% 38,7195 8
(DR —T4E £ 31,25150)

Estimated price of US$6,699 — US$7,614
(2015: US$5,442 — US$6,799) per
square metre

B 05 Ok Z Al 5B 4% 6,699 58 - 7,614
KIC (R —T4F 1 5,442387C - 6,799
B
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

16

B AR

A

B

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 YE- -BREEZE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mfat > (4F)
(d) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (d) W~ R R A R R (8)
(continued)
(it) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (ii) FHE =R A A7 22 B
Office premises of the Group were revalued based A AR T 2 T MR A R T AR
on valuations performed by Castores Magi (Hong Pl (W) A IRAE (AhER
Kong) Limited, an external independent and qualified S B A B R FEAY B ) BT AR Z REAG B
valuers. The Group’s finance team discussed with the FE o PRIAT: JIE W i 6 i HE AT SRR
valuers on the valuation assumptions and results when Al e > AS4E [H 2 B 75 [ B 3 6 B E
the valuation was performed for annual financial AR B 5w LR AR 04 AR R B A o
reporting purpose.
The fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong A A v e v B G B P P SR
and mainland China are determined using market NRAETIET G IR EE » 2%
comparison approach by reference to recent quotation SE DL 3 4 20T ) A A (F
or sale prices of comparable properties on a price per FK) o
square metre basis.
A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price Pk ER R ER BT
per square metre would result in a significant increase/ TRRE SR ERTE 2 A RETEKR
decrease in the fair value of the office premises. LT T
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWE
2016 2015
“E2 N ZER I
Note US$’000 US$’000
K it FoL T FILFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January B—H—HZHREHE 16,365 18,927
Net changes in fair value O FofF 5 ) 7 (272) (1,675)
Transfer to owner-occupied properties %] FH 4% 15 (1,625) (155)
Exchange realignment i B4, i) 2 (955) (732)
Carrying amount at 31 December At HA=1+—HZEHHE 13,513 16,365
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes:

(a)

(i)

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 KREWE (&)
M 2t
All investment properties of the Group are situated in (a) JI A B 3 R R K B o
mainland China.
Fair value measurements of investment properties (b) B/EWENA RMAG =
Fair value hierarchy (i) ARG Z R
The following table presents the fair value of the TERSMR G RAREEZ &
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of YRR AT R A RE >
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised i I R B A MR R 1358 A 2 A
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HZEENB=MHER -
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December categorised into
BT ZH=1—HARMG =208
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B 5 AN =N s
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILTFIT FILTIT FILTFIT FILTIT
2016 TR RS
Investment properties "EWME - - 13,513 13,513
2015 —F T
Investment properties EVaZErES - - 16,365 16,365

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of reporting period used in the

valuation models.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b#% EH B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16

REWE (&)

Notes: (continued) Mt o (4F)
(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued) (b) wEWEN N RAEF B ()
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AR R (4
Type Valuation technique Key unobservable inputs
% W6 75 % A BN 2B
Factories and farms in mainland China Market comparison approach  Estimated price of US$4 — US$458
A7 WP I B 4 R s e et B i 35 L vk (2015: US$4 — US$303) per square
metre
B J5 R Z Al w438 T - 45838 7T
(ZZF—TJ04F : 43650 - 3033€5E)
Commercial buildings in mainland China Market comparison approach ~ Estimated price of US$417 — US$475
N ST PN E U S i 35 L v (2015: US$420 — US$479) per square
metre
B 5 R Z Al wHE A 4179858 - 4755650
(ZZ—TJ04F £ 420358 - 47936 7C)
(i) Information about level 3 fair value measurements (ii) T BE =B 4 M0 7] 2 2 B

Investment properties of the Group were revalued
based on valuations performed by Castores Magi
(Hong Kong) Limited and Beijing Huadeheng Assets
Evaluation Co., Ltd., both are external independent
and qualified valuers. The Group’s finance team
discussed with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and results when the valuation was

performed for annual financial reporting purpose.

The fair value of the investment properties are
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent quotation or sale prices of
comparable properties on a price per square metre

basis.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price
per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
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b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANFET_H=1—HILFEE
LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 BEMLHEEE
2016 2015
TR NE DR IE
Note US$’°000 US$’000
Kt FrFr  FErLFi
Carrying amount at 1 January #—H— B IR A 108,874 65,030
Continuing operations FRERE T
Acquisition of subsidiaries WAL i o V8 2 ) 38 29,792 -
Additions wE 4,699 57,471
Amortisation provided during the year SENEH R 9 (3,588) (3,117)
Disposal & (94) (4,965)
Exchange realignment iEE 52 i 2 (7,687) (4,474)
Discontinued operations ERIEBEED
Amortisation provided during the period  HJ N5 HE#ESY - (17)
Exchange realignment P e, 30 - 1
Distribution in specie B Ik 39 - (1,055)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ HA=+—HEHE 131,996 108,874
Current portion included in prepayments, & REM KK - #HE X
deposits and other receivables At JRE WOR Sk E  43 (3,589) (3,126)
Non-current portion FEF HHB 4 128,407 105,748
Analysis of leasehold land by location: 8 35 A S - i AE A BB
Zigiin'!| I
Mainland China i ] K B 123,955 100,782
Vietnam B 8,041 8,092
131,996 108,874
Note: Mt -

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an

aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$43,246,000 (2015:

US$11,723,000) were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the

Group (note 31(b)).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements

B A R 2 A

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—XETH=1—HILFEE
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 18 4£YEE
Current Other
Breeders livestock — biological
and layers swine assets Total
BEaE  ENEE - HAtr .
REH BE A B At
Note US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
Wit Er T Eomivn FImvn Eompn
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(Mit(a) (H7Eb) (M)
At 1 January 2016: REF—NFE—H—H:
At cost less accumulated depreciation A B 3H T
and impairment: Tt -
Cost JRA 83,094 - 25,809 108,903
Accumulated depreciation and B HTE R
impairment (20,530) - - (20,530)
62,564 - 25,809 88,373
At fair value less costs of disposal A RAETUR B A - 260,318 - 260,318
62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
Net carrying amount: J T v
At 1 January 2016 REZF—AF—H—H 62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
Acquisition of subsidaries W B ) 38 6,789 - - 6,789
Increase due to purchases/raising s 30 TR 79,830 776,038 146,851 1,002,719
Net changes in fair value less costs of /2 R H IR B HAC
disposal ZHFH - (33,009) - (33,009)
Depreciation provided during FENFHETE
the year 9 (28,174) - - (28,174)
Decrease due to sales PR 83 8 1 > (14,799) (710,115) (147,265) (872,179)
Decrease due to culling g1 b (28,407) (7,139) - (35,546)
Exchange realignment I 30, 2% (1,162) (4,014) (317) (5,493)
At 31 December 2016 REF—NE
+-H=+—H 76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
At 31 December 2016: RN
FoAZ—R
At cost less accumulated LUNTESHE R Y
depreciation and impairment:
Cost JRA 98,115 - 25,078 123,193
Accumulated depreciation and ZEITE R
impairment (21,474) - - (21,474)
76,641 - 25,078 101,719
At fair value less costs of disposal AR B A - 282,079 - 282,079
76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
Analysed into: AHF
Current biological assets R E 19,425 282,079 25,078 326,582
Non-current biological assets FEMEMEE 57,216 - - 57,216
76,641 282,079 25,078 383,798
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b #% BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - —XN4ETZH =+ —H L4
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) EYEE (#)
Current Other
Breeders livestock — biological
and layers swine assets Total
HFHEE  EHNAE - Al ‘
RER#® i R Mgt
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
M Fi i Emwn Fi i ET
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(H7k(a) (HiEb)) (H7E(c)
At 1 January 2015: R_-F—HHE—~H—H:
At cost less accumulated PN e
depreciation and impairment: T
Cost A 84,041 - 27,943 111,984
Accumulated depreciation and RS R
impairment (20,965) - - (20,965)
63,076 - 27,943 91,019
At fair value less costs of disposal AR E A - 252,086 - 252,086
63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
Net carrying amount: HR A
At 1 January 2015 R-F—HHE—~H—H 63,076 252,086 27,943 343,105
Increase due to purchases/raising S} A= 2 byl 60,997 704,541 156,416 921,954
Net changes in fair value less costs /A RRAERIE B BA
of disposal SR - 6,954 - 6,954
Depreciation provided during LI
the year 9 (26,623) - - (26,623)
Decrease due to sales TR 88 i i A (4,907) (675,575) (157,206) (837,688)
Decrease due to culling S (26,834) (15,214) - (42,048)
Exchange realignment M 33, 8 28 (3,145) (12,474) (1,344) (16,963)
At 31 December 2015 BT
+ZA=+—H 62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
At 31 December 2015: /S 1
+ZH=+—H:
At cost less accumulated NEHE
depreciation and impairment: Tt
Cost A 83,094 - 25,809 108,903
Accumulated depreciation and BEHOTEE R
impairment (20,530) - - (20,530)
62,564 - 25,809 88,373
At fair value less costs of disposal N RAE e E R AR - 260,318 - 260,318
62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
Analysed into: AHWT
Current biological assets A E R 13,083 260,318 25,809 299,210
Non-current biological assets EE R 49,481 - - 49,481
62,564 260,318 25,809 348,691
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

18 BIOL

Notes:

(a)

OGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars
(collectively “swine breeders”) held for the production
of piglets for sales and/or further raising to become swine
parent stock or fattening pigs, (ii) chicken breeders held
for production of hatching eggs in order to produce day-old

chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of consumable

eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses as (i)
they are not sold by the Group and no active market exists;
(ii) other references to market prices such as market prices
for similar assets are not available; and (iii) valuation based
on a discounted cash flow method is considered unreliable
given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such as

climate and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g.
cost of new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine
breeders are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their productive period of 24 to 36 months starting from
the reproduction phase, while chicken breeders and layers
are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.
Current livestock — swine

Current livestock — swine are piglets and fattening swines and
are stated at fair value less costs of disposal. Fair values are
determined based on market prices, and where transaction
prices are not available for certain age groups, based on
prevailing market prices of other age groups, with adjustments

taking into account difference in weight.
Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock

other than breeders and layers.

B AR

A
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
b #% BB B & R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 & E _F—N4E+_H=+—HIL4EE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Other biological assets (continued)

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs,
while aquatic livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and
aquatic livestock are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
which are not materially different from their fair value due to

short production cycle.

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the
Group’s biological assets as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

BE
KB

Livestock

Aquatic

The estimates of physical quantities of biological assets were
based on experience and historical data. The Group conducts
full physical count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain
the quantity and physical condition of swine and project the
overall weight. For poultry livestock, the Group performs real
time update on stock movement to project the overall weight.
For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method to

project the overall weight.

18 4£MEE (&)

ML - (#)

(c)
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Ho A 2y 7 (A1)

BB - AR > KA
B3 IR T o SR B A A R IRA I AT 1] 98
B B > 36 EL o 2 7 T e B L AR
TR AT 2R 0L L N o K 5
e

A SR [ 7 3 AT 2 A Y I R
Mgt R

2016 2015
“EA B Sl TS
Tons Tons

g i

244,000 199,000
8,500 15,000

ARG T 0 2y R R A R
AR I T B S MR o AR A R 0 AR AT
T PR B BT > DR S 7 AR A O RO L
Te Al ST w2 o ACAR P 45 3 S ) O
AT B I ST DA S R T R o ACAR K
TR A Y T R R BT s R A S R A
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE
18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s biological assets measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS

13 Fair value measurement.

B

EYEE (H)

Wit : ()

() EMnYEREMA AR
(i) ARMZHH

TR MR R AL 2 Az
W R AR R A RAE >
T4 o e o 2 e o Y S 13 4V A A
ZREFS By A o

Fair value measurement as at
31 December categorised into
BT ZHA=ZF— A RMEGHEZ 438
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Y| | e 3| ek
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E B n #rxTtrx  FErLTrx

2016 ZE A

Current livestock — Swine EWEE - B - - 282,079 282,079
2015 SRR

Current livestock — Swine EHEE e - - 260,318 260,318

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 & E _F—N4E+_H=+—HIL4EE

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques
used in the determination of fair values within Level
3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs at the end of the reporting period used in the

valuation models.

Type Valuation technique

b 1675 ¥

Current livestock — swine

EHEE - B T 355 PR3

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of current livestock — swine is
performed by the Group’s relevant finance department
and operations team on a quarterly basis using a series

of systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam.
The fair value of suckling swine, weanling swine and
fattening swine are determined based on transaction
price per head and their weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases
as a result of an increase/decrease in the transaction
price. As at 31 December 2016, if transaction price
increases/decreases by 10%, the estimated fair

value of swine would have increased/decreased by

US$27,004,000 (2015: US$25,586,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Market comparison approach

£YEE (&)
Wik : (49)
() IR R R (8D
(i) ARMEZHHA)

TERERBZGNG AR
AR % 55 0 AR B R =2 A
A8 7 % B Ak Al AR K
EEENLE P2

Key unobservable inputs

AN 2

Transaction prices of:

Suckling swine US$57.1 to US$66.7
(2015: US$57.8 to US$67.8) per head

Weanling swine US$60.2 to US$92.7
(2015: US$61.6 to US$105.6) per head

Fattening swine US$1.5 to US$1.6 (2015:
US$2.0 to US$2.2) per kg

2 G A

FLFEF 5715896 £66.73 0
(ZF—HAF 1 57.85EICF67.8%0)

/NFE A BR60.238 76 292.73 0
(ZF—T4F £ 61.6%I6F105.6370)

HIEFEE AT 15K B E .63 70
(ZF— T4 : 2.0¥ILF2.2%50)

(i) H B FE =R AR A
ZEH

HUBE —RBEIARE
T3 4 7 v A 45 T A B A
0 1 B I BR A — R
I F AR PTR P HEAT AN

LR A AR A R
o JLBE - ANEE T E LR
ZARAMTIMAR IR 5
AR e B A R E o

WOE M A R E
[ (3 1
It/ T kW LT Tk
W _F—-ANE+_H
=+—H o Bk Sk
ETF T B10% - FE Y
AR AEAGEHE LT T
2,70048 XX (ZF— 1N
4F 1 2,558,683 T0) o

2 - XN F F R
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B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—NE+_H=+—H L4
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 HEFREE
2016 2015
SN SR T
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FFic E < an
At 1 January: wN—H—H:
Cost JRAR 38,460 40,242
Accumulated amortisation HE RSy (4,291) (1,710)
Net carrying amount R T VML 34,169 38,532
Net carrying amount: MR THI .
At 1 January B—H—H 34,169 38,532
Amortisation provided during the
year AR PR 8 9 (2,597) (2,745)
Exchange realignment [ 50, 3 2% (2,108) (1,618)
At 31 December Nt _H=+—H 29,464 34,169
At 31 December: Ht+H=+—H:
Cost AR 35,960 38,460
Accumulated amortisation RSy (6,496) (4,291)
Net carrying amount i ThG 29,464 34,169
Note: Mt -

The Group’s intangible asset represents customer relationship of

the Group which is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses.

«

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

distribution costs” in profit or loss.

selling and
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

20 REIBARNES

Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

attributable equity
interest held by

# LM AR Z BT

Company name operations registered capital Company Group Principal activities
B3 aed CEATSER, . AT R 2 b
YNTER o L TEHE A AT ARSI FEEE
CP China Investment Limited Cayman Islands/ US$79,228,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding
Hong Kong 79,228,000347C BB
PR BEE T
Chia Tai (China) Investment PRC/PRC US$196,695,333 - 100.0% Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“CTI”)@ HE e 196,695,333%7C and trading of
EX(PE) #EHFRAF raw materials
(TIERHE ) BB X
C. P. Premix (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.® PRC/PRC US$23,812,500 - 100.0% Manufacture and
1IE R TR R A R A & @ W 23,812,5003 ¢ sale of animal feed
EHAER
Chengdu Chia Tai Company PRC/PRC US$6,300,000 - 70.0% Manufacture and
Limited® LRI 6,300,000 7€ sale of animal feed
B IE KA R R @ S B w R
Fuzhou Da Fu Company Limited™ PRC/PRC US$9,139,297 - 100.0% Manufacture and
e K A AR A B0 Hi 9,139,2973 78 sale of animal feed
EHAERR
Huludao Chia Tai Husbandry PRC/PRC RMB28,100,000 - 100.0% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.” HE 28,100,000\ R sale of animal feed
WS IR R &N R AR @ RSB & R
Inner Mongolia Chia Tai PRC/PRC 1US$8,190,700 - 90.4%® Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.( LT T 8,190,700 70 sale of animal feed
W 5T IE KA B2 R G0 EHAERR
Kumming Chia Tai Co., Ltd.(® PRC/PRC US$6,405,300 - 92.4% Manufacture and
B W IE KA FR A ] 6o HE 6,405,300 70 sale of animal feed
B &R
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

20 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Company name
R

Lanzhou Chia Tai Co., Ltd@
BN IE KA BRA H 00

Nanning Chia Tai Animal
Husbandry Comopany
Limited

3 IE R & HOA RA A

Qingdao Chiatai Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.®™

HRIERRER AR AR

Urumgi Chia Tai Animal
Husbandry Co., Ltd.(®
5B AR IE K& RA R 6

Xiangyang Chia Tai Co., Ltd.®"
%%Ej{ﬁ F&’L\\ﬁj('v)

Fujian Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd.
(“Fuijan Chia Tai”)t®

A IE KRR A R4
([fE R IE K] @

Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd.
(“Hebei Chia Tai”)®

WAL IE KA BRAH
(ML IE K ])

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations

AL A
B

PRC/PRC
e

PRC/PRC
i

PRC/PRC
i,

PRC/PRC
i

PRC/PRC
e

PRC/PRC

i,

PRC/PRC
i

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
CRfTEER,
T A
US$14,953,000

14,953,00037C

US$6,774,500
6,774,500t

US$12,025,800
12,025,80035 ¢

RMB34,250,000
34,250,000 \ R #

RMB97,900,000
97,900,000 A %

RMB218,000,000

218,000,000 \ R

RMB280,000,000
280,000,000 \ R

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by
Company Group

HEAS 157 JBERE ¥ 4 b
AT AL

- 90.6%

- 91.6%"

- 100.0%

- 93.4%"

- 100.0%

- 70.0%

- 100.0%

RKB AT RS (&)

Principal activities

FEEH

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

EH A HETR

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE S B B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

EH B HEIR

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

FE S B B R

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed

EH A HETR

Investment holding

and trading of chicken

meat products
BHERER &
v 7 i B 5

Manufacture and

sale of animal feed and

chicken meat products

5 Ay A R
5 P 7E
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name
R

Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd.")

ERBEMEERER)
R

Chia Tai Food Enterprise
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd™
IER R A3k (7 ) A IRA R W

C. P. Food (Xiangyang) Co.,
Led®™
TERR 5 (B0 A A R

Jilin Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd™
WARIE R R A R A

Modern State Investments
Limited

C. P. Vietnam Corporation
(“CPVC”)

Hannick Limited

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

20

Place of
incorporation/

registration and Issued ordinary/

operations registered capital

BRI nede TSR

B b 2 M AR

PRC/PRC US$117,460,000

HE e 117,460,000%7¢

PRC/PRC US$85,700,000

HE e 85,700,000%7¢

PRC/PRC RMB380,000,000

HiE, R 380,000,000 N R

PRC/PRC RMB240,000,000

Hil, 240,000,000 A Rl

British Virgin Island/ US$106,984,000

Hong Kong 106,984,000 70
EEAER RS

Vietnam/Vietnam VNDI1,741,792,500,000

MEME 1,741,792,500,000

oL

Hong Kong/Hong Kong 2 shares
T/ T LB

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RH B A B R (A)

Percentage of
attributable equity
interest held by

Company Group Principal activities

FEAG i BRE T 43 Ll

ARAH AR FEEK
- 100.0% Manufacture and
sale of value-added,

processed food products

BRI T AR
- 100.0% Manufacture and
sale of value-added,

processed food products

FESHHEE 0 T AT
- 100.0% Manufacture and
sale of value-added,

processed food products

FEBIIEME N T4 5
- 100.0% Manufacture and
sale of value-added,

processed food products

B 1A T

100.0% 100.0% Investment holding
and provision of
technical services
BE P S

S H 0 R B

- 70.8% Integrated

agri-food business

AT AR A E

- 100.0%  Property investment

IR 13
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—XETH=1—HILFEE
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RKEBAIMWER (F)
Notes: s
(i) The Group is only entitled to 85% of the subsidiary’s earnings. (i) AREHMEGREEZFRBEANZ85% » HipZ
The remaining 15% is attributable to the PRC joint venture 15% WP EA B AR -
partner.
(ii) Established as a contractual joint venture under PRC law. (ii) WMPEERER LG ERENE -
(iii) Established as a cooperative joint venture under PRC law. (iii) WP EERRL GRS
(iv) Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC (iv) R RGBS AINE R E AR
law.
The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company LR B R Z AR N E A EER
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the By o TR TR B AR B 2B A e Al A 4 [ R
Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the W R o B > 5 BT A Ho At B g 2
Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in AR ER g EBURRERRICE -
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 REELENER
2016 2015
“E2 N e Sk TR
Note US$’000 US$’000
K it FIL T FIL T
Investments in joint ventures, REBEENRE >
included in non-current assets: BENIERBEEN -
Share of net assets TEAL TG (a) 19,289 19,669
Due from joint ventures, included in FEW A B AERIE > B
prepayments, deposits and other REME -~ e R
receivables At B B 2K 27(a) 1,413 195
Due to joint ventures, included in  FEA} &2 R EHIE » SR
other payables and accruals Al 8 A MRk B AR 2 30(a) (8,136) (10,530)
Interests in joint ventures T A 2 B R A 12,566 9,334
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures, none
of which is regarded as individually material. The following
table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all
individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for

using the equity method:

21 REEDLEMWER (EH)

(a)  AEEREKGE ARG R > T
Ay 8 3 — RAPAR T TR o T AR M DA
eIl A P N TR B N R e i)

R A
Profit Other Total
Carrying for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount period/year income income
WM AN ERA bR ERE  2ERE A
US$000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000

Fr T S KT KL T

2016 SR A
Group effective interest AK A ROHE 2 19,289 4,129 (1,278) 2,851
2015 R
Group effective interest ARG RO 2
— Continuing operations - BEREEE 19,669 3,679 (873) 2,806
— Discontinued operations - DRIEREEE - 1,581 (1,057) 524
19,669 5,260 (1,930) 3,330

(b) The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances
with joint ventures are disclosed in note 26(c) and 29 to the

financial statements, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) Particulars of the joint ventures, which are indirectly held by

the Company, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

operations
Company name FEMERRSL,  Registered capital
AR i 8V B WA A
Beijing Chia Tai Feedmill Limited PRC/PRC US$5,000,000
JEHIE R R B A W v 5,000,00034 7%
Handan Chia Tai Feed Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB11,200,000
8 5 T K ) LA R ) R, 11,200,000 A\ R
Henan East Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC US$5,400,000
P RS IE KA BRA o 5,400,0003 J&
Jilin Chia Tai Enterprise Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB70,000,000
FARIEREEHRA A R 70,000,000\ R

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

(&)

BX

REghENE

ML - (#)

(c) HiAC A ] B F A 2 A8 AR R

Percentage of

FAEESLIL
Interest
attributable
to the Profit
Group sharing Principal activities
AR
WEAGRERE AN Ui 37
50.0% 50.0% Manufacture and
sale of animal feed
E §7 85 R
50.0% 50.0% Manufacture and
sale of animal feed
JE 5 85 R
50.0% 50.0% Manufacture and
sale of animal feed
JE 8 85 R
50.0% 50.0% Manufacture and
sale of animal feed
JE 87 85 R
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _~E—ANFE+ _H=+—H L4 E

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 REELEQXTHNES
2016 2015
BN e Sl T2
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt FEFic FEL L
Investments in associates, included in B AT HHRE >
non-current assets: BENRIERBEEN :
Share of net assets JEAG A (a) 76,411 48,200
Goodwill on acquisition W s A W T (b) 28,868 —
105,279 48,200
Due to associates, included in other JEAST B 8 2 WK » A A
payables and accruals JHC Al A HR 5k
KR 30(a) (50) (43)
Interests in associates T2 0N ] W RE 75 105,229 48,157
Notes: Mt
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates, none of (a) A [ B  n w) BER MRS > ME AT

A 8 S — SR WA R B TR o R e Bt L
R 25 3 1) R 2 AR i 5 DR EOK R I A D

which is regarded as individually material. The following

table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of all

individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using Z W E R A
the equity method:
Profit Other Total
Carrying for the comprehensive comprehensive
amount period/year income income
MR AW AERA Hb2mlEE  midRes s
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’000
Eman Emn Emn FEI T
2016 CERAE
Group effective interest AK A RORE 2 105,279 11,091 (5,051) 6,040
2015 —“EF T
Group effective interest A A RN 7
— Continuing operations - FEREEE 48,200 11,352 (2,127) 9,225
— Discontinued operations _ DRI ER - 1,877 21 1,898
48,200 13,229 (2,106) 11,123
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

22

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Particulars of the principal associates, which are indirectly

held by the Company, are as follows:

A

22

B

RBE QTR NERS (&)

ML - (#)

(b)
T

HI A W) [ A 2 R A W SR

Percentage of

RAEASLL
Place of Interest
incorporation/ attributable
registration and Issued ordinary/ to the Profit

operations registered capital Group sharing Principal activities

Company name HRL WA BTN, AL B
PAEA i1 3 B HE A WEAGHERS  MEAG R FEEH
Conti Chia Tai International Hong Kong/ HK$3,122,000 50.0% 50.0%  Investment holding,
Limited* PRC 3,122,000 76 and manufacture and
R b TE R A R ) HFEHHE sale of animal feed
BRI M
E S By A R
Qingdao Yi Bang Bio-Engineering PRC/PRC RMB28,409,090 12.0% 12.0% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Yi Bang”)*® g, 28,409,000 A R sale of animal vaccine
R TRARAH JE S B P

(IEEHFH1) =0

Since the Group is not in a position to exercise joint
control over the economic activity of the entities
but has significant influence over the entities, the
Group’s interests therein are classified as interests in

associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired a 12.0% interest in Qingdao Yi Bang, which
is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
animal vaccine in the PRC. The consideration for
the acquisition was RMB260,000,000 (equivalent
to US$39,003,000) and was fully settled in the
form of cash during the year. The Group has sent
representative to the board of directors of Qingdao Yi
Bang, and has significant influence over its financial
and operating policies decisions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

H T AR 4R [ R R 3B 5 4 W) 2 T
WEAT O R e > (BN
HEKEEN - AREBMIFFH M
R B A T A R AR -

BE-Z-AFTH=+—H1k
AEJE > ARSI WU B S 3512.0%
JBERE > JL TR o R E S B
BEW o AR M M B N R
2.64% 76 (HI % 3,900.3# 3£ 5¢8) »
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Unlisted equity investments, at cost

23

kBT Z SRR E > R

THEEZRE

2016 2015

e SR gk
US$’000 US$’000
KT FIE HIETTE
11,730 8,435

The unlisted equity investments are not stated at fair value but
at cost because they do not have a quoted market price in an
active market, the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for these investments and the probabilities of the

various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

% 5 I TR 2 B T AR i I 4 A A
FUAE > 775 A I 35 R i 35 3 28 v 455 A Bkt
b S5 B A B GO A A
FR DL B A A S0 35 5 LR Al 25 B w2 VT B

GOODWILL 24 THE

2016 2015

ZEN —E—hE

US$’000 US$’ 000

E e n FILFIC

At 1 January #—H—H 37,563 39,303
Exchange realignment [ 50 A (2,442) (1,740)
At 31 December wmt_HA=+—H 35,121 37,563

Goodwill represented the assets that do not meet the criteria
for recognition in the financial statements including workforce
and synergies that the Group expected to achieve through the

business combinations.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGU) identified according to the country of operation and

the operating segment.

Goodwill is allocated to the China agri-food segment.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%). The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 14.9%-18.9%
(2015: 14.9%-18.9%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.
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T TS AN R B R AT (T U 2
FE > B35 A 4 VL TR JO) 9 008 3 5 £ F T 2 B Y
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T 4 S 5 X RE R 4 SR T M I % 4 T B T
sk 1) By B 4 2 E LA

AT PR T M EESE B E
oy R A IR CIR - WA R = A
P o W SRR T AR R B A v TR 2S5
EMMM EHBRETNBESREHEY - 8
WMSER B SRR I 3% (ZF— T4
3% ) R Al ST R P 3 84 R RO AT HES - Bl &
MR NIRB R 14.9%-18.9% (B — 14 :
14.9%—18.9%) #EATHr B » R Z I BLETIHL
AT > Sl R B B AH BE B 4 A A LA B 2
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B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E R —ANF T _H=1—H ILFEJE
25 INVENTORIES 25 ®RE
2016 2015
ZEN ZER I
US$’000 US$’000
F LTt Fx T
Raw materials JE R} 444,359 395,769
Work in progress Fedl 3,156 3,113
Finished goods B 85,856 95,794
533,371 494,676
26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EUWESERIRERE
2016 2015
ZEN ZER I
US$’000 US$’000
E V7 n Fx T
Trade receivables FEW B 5 Mk 196,027 141,313
Bills receivable JE W g 6,875 7,039
202,902 148,352
Depending on the requirements of the market and business, WP i B R EE R R - REEKBTES
the Group may provide extend credit to its customers. The fERH o A4 B B 45 RIERBRIUEK 2 B
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding Peo SHG G ERHBBRB > 47 > &
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by HE fr Hie A 45 [ 22 22 i 1 ) 7S G 2 R R 3
management and interest may be charged by the Group for B o G ABEEGE A TSP
oxiff}rldueftrade retceivabllis tat ratte.s detlerrrzi}:led by ‘the Gfrcz}tip VAL o A% R W 5T S B R e > 4
Wl reference ‘o maf ewprac ice. In § opinion 9 ! e W (DL 05 H 002 355 1 F
directors, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables,
based on the date of delievery of goods, is as follows:
2016 2015
S B S TR S
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit B o FILFIT
60 days or below 60H BT 179,618 124,630
61 to 180 days 61%180H 24,788 22,610
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 1,236 4,829
Over 360 days %2 *360H 6,427 4,814
212,069 156,883
Impairment VAR (a) (9,167) (8,531)
(b) 202,902 148,352
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B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EWESZERIAREE (&)
(continued)
Notes: et
(a) The movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (a) A P JRE WK BT 5 B T R M A S T
bills receivables during the year are as follows: T
2016 2015
=% —E i
Note US$’000 US$’000
it E/mn E
At 1 January #—H—H 8,531 3,205
Impairment during the year recognised PENTREEERZ
in profit or loss, net VA R 952 5,335
Uncollectible amounts written off e Il 2 g 4 A (316) 9)
At 31 December »wt+—-HA=+—H 9,167 8,531

(b)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
and bills receivables of US$7,872,000 (2015: US$5,785,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of the same amount.
The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to

customers who were in financial difficulties.

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:

R A BT Mk e 4 9 A L 3
HRTHI 25 787 28 3678 (=% —TL4F = 578.5
HSET0) M8 3 M e B 5 MR R AR Y IR 2 Ok
B A o 2 A8 31 MR WA B ) M ok D o Bk
BT I R & P A -

AR 2 ZEATE Hh A 2 R K B MRk e
RIRE T NT

2016 2015

A e S T2

US$’000 US$’000

FoLF FILT T

Neither past due nor impaired AR BB sl R WA 181,327 127,704
180 days or below past due WEA180H 19,101 16,791
Over 180 days past due M Z R 180H 689 1,404
201,117 145,899

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

26 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26 EWEZRAKRERE (E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt : ()
(c) Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December (c) REFMA_Z—ANET+T_H=1+—HZE

2016 are aggregate amounts of US$3,986,000 (2015:
US$5,012,000) and US$152,727,000 (2015: US$109,238,000)
due from joint ventures and related companies, respectively,
arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary course
of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and
are repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by

the Group to its major customers.

W B2 5 Rk A 16 A SR I AR B H W R B R
Sy W6 T i A At 239868 K8 (R — T
40 501.28380) J1M85,272.78 3% (2
T TUAE + 148923885 £ 7)) 4 I 2 E K
B A T B A R Z K o A REUS
JHESIE A 5 7 AR U AR 2 AC AR B T E 2 Rt
B RIS SN R (AR B
HERPF R FRRE B -

27 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27 FENERR R RHEMEWERR

RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
e =
US$’000 US$’000
E T abn FIL T
Prepayments THAT IR K 96,456 51,058
Deposits w4 8,099 8,971
Other receivables A R WS B K 72,086 56,693
Derivative financial instruments ik 4T H 5,063 5
181,704 116,727

Notes: M EE -
(a) Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other (a) AEER R -AFEF A= —HZH

receivables as at 31 December 2016 was an aggregate amount
of US$1,413,000 (2015: US$195,000) and US$52,206,000
(2015: US$40,416,000) due from joint ventures and related
companies, respectively. The balances are unsecured, interest

free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
(b) Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments (b)
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the

three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥
27 FEMNERXR - ZeREMEWRER (E)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

ML (4)

(b)

A A 4 TR B A SR AE (A

RG2S ()

Fair value measurement

as at 31 December categorised into

w’
Level 1
A

TZAZ+t—HA R ERZ S8
Level 2 Level 3 Total
Gy iy 3| ok

US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

E i an E/nyan E Sy an E 7/ n

2016 B A
Derivative financial MESH TR

instruments

— Forward exchange contracts — BWHANE A T - 5,063 - 5,063
2015 e S K
Derivative financial it 4m T H

instruments

— Forward exchange contracts — EHAMNES R - 5 - 5

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of

the reporting period in which they occur.

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is determined
by using market comparison approach with reference to the
forward rates of forward exchange contracts involving the
same currencies in the market as at the end of the reporting

period.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

B AR

28 CASH AND BANK BALANCES HEeERBITER
2016 2015
SN SR T
US$’000 US$’000
FEFic FEoL L
Cash and bank balances other than time B4 R IT &
deposits (A BLHGE A 3K) 236,153 277,970
Time deposits E AT 224,868 266,037
Total cash and bank balances B4 R ARAT A7 K 461,021 544,007
Less: Pledged deposits W CHIPE K (41,005) (48,900)
Less: Time deposits with maturity over ik c B H B =E A
three months 2 W (151,112) (206,869)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kBl &S EY 268,904 288,238

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2016, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) amounted to US$418,906,000
(2015: US$440,630,000) and US$20,692,000 (2015:
US$55,094,000), respectively. RMB and VND are not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations and the Law on Foreign Investment in
Vietnam, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB and VND
into other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
depending on the cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 29 EHEZERIARER
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of AR F RN B R A 5 IR sk 2 IR B b
the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (W H W A3k ) T -
follows:
2016 2015
ZEN ZER I
US$’000 US$’000
B FILFT
60 days or below 60H B AT 258,471 237,276
61 to 180 days 61%180H 16,616 10,341
181 to 360 days 181&360H 1,216 1,503
Over 360 days Z*360H 1,208 883
277,511 250,003
Bills payable JEAT S5 63,098 30,799
340,609 280,802
Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December 2016 AREFMPR_-F—-ANET_H=Z1T—HZHE
is an aggregate amount of US$941,000 (2015: US$797,000) F B2 5 Mk 6 6 KRB O SR A2 B N T
and US$17,884,000 (2015: US$15,732,000) due to joint A A 8 A S5 T B B A R 3K 4 il
ventures and related companies respectively, arising from HAt04.1E KL (ZF— N4 : 19.78 K 0)
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of F1,188. 48 KL (ZF—HAE  1,573.28 3%
the Group. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and are JC) o WX R EUT ALY - B RANE R
repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by its 1 P9 A R (PR A [ R O T IR B 2 A
major suppliers. BWIHE) -
30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HENEKRIRFERER
2016 2015
SE-AE CE R
US$’000 US$’000
FIL T Fx T
Receipts in advance THIRE 3K 59,688 58,688
Deferred income BEIEWA 37,884 27,028
Accruals kS 179,420 171,664
Other payables FL At JFE ) Bk 69,416 62,477
Derivative financial instruments 4T H - 452
346,408 320,309
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2016 were an aggregate amounts of US$8,136,000
(2015: US$10,530,000), US$50,000 (2015: US$43,000) and
US$20,194,000 (2015: US$16,625,000) due to joint ventures,

associates and related companies respectively.

The balances with joint ventures, assoicates and related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment, except for (i) an aggregate amount of
US$8,106,000 (2015: US$10,501,000) due to certain joint
ventures which bear interests at 2% (2015: 2%) per annum
and are repayable on demand, and (ii) an aggregate amount
of US$16,409,000 (2015: US$13,919,000) due to a related

company which is repayable within one month.
Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
derivative financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair

value measurement.

A

B

30 HttENRRRBEREM (H)

REEMPR _—F—-ANEF_A=Z+—HAZH
b A Rk B TR B B ) B HG ART8 13,68 36
Jo (R — T4 £ 1,053.0835758) ~ 5.0
JC(ZR— A 1 4.383E0) K2,019.48 3%
JC (=B — AR+ 1,662.58 350 4 5 4 HE
A A ~ T o0 ) T BB A W] Z 3K o

BLA B A s A A R B A R Z R
o B TO)ARSI0EETL (ZF X
1,050 18 %) BNETEEAER
AR R2% (ZF— 4R 2%) #H B K& I%
BRBE A - DL K (i) A R 1,640.98 30 (Z
F—FAE 1 1,391.98 3 0) BEAT — KB #
A FRIE TR — M WA > AR R
By MR ~ S S B A s R AR

(b) A& T HA RE R

ARATZRA

ST R R A G I A A Gk T
FLAbr R e L R O O fE > 045 B B S
B 134 2 M 1 1 2 5 T =AW
B o

Fair value measurement as at 31 December categorised into

RtZA=Z+—Ha R &2 4058

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
| B B0 A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B n F T B n E
2016 SR AR
Derivative financial e TH
instruments
— Forward exchange contracts — Y1 Hb B £ W] — - — —
2015 B —HAE
Derivative financial i 4l T H
instruments
— Forward exchange contracts — W AMNE S W - 452 - 452

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

- -

7N

F F R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

Al

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HMEMSEKRIARFEREAR (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mk - (%)
(b) Fair value measurement of derivative financial instruments (b) it 4 T HAA RESE (5
(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARAEZ R (HH)
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there BRE _F-ANER_F-HET A
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers =+ —HIEERER > W — A A
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise Z WMz > sl A S =00 o A
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of S5 JE) 22 WS T R I R R R 2R
the reporting period in which they occur. A 2 R o
The fair value of the forward exchange contracts is determined JEHIANE G IR 2 A AL 1 5 LR %k 2
by using market comparison approach with reference to the 2 B R 2 i B bR T R A g 0 A
forward rates of forward exchange contracts involving the [ & ] A 42 300 [ 3R B A o
same currencies in the market as at the end of the reporting
period.
31 BANK BORROWINGS 31 SRITRHMMER
2016 2015
e S RN
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mk V7 n FIL T
Bank borrowings, secured B HASRATAE 3K (a), (b) 113,477 54,330
Bank borrowings, unsecured SHE LI SRAT A K 1,166,749 1,048,740
Total bank borrowings AT R AL 1,280,226 1,103,070
Analysed into amounts repayable: R ST A
Within one year or on demand —4E N B R 376,093 482,963
In the second year AR AR 137,714 232,601
In the third to fifth year PR =F AR 748,410 216,783
Beyond five years i AR 18,009 170,723
Total bank borrowings SRATAS Ak B 1,280,226 1,103,070
Portion classified as current liabilities A3 38 B T B A A (c) (376,093) (482,963)
Non-current portion R B ER A 904,133 620,107
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE
BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

31

Notes:

(a)

(d)

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and eqiuipment with carrying amounts of US$59,542,000
(2015: nil) (note 15(b)) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings of the Group.

B AR

A

31

B

RITRHAMBERK (&)

RO -AETH=E1T—H KEEZ
AT AT RS Bt R E i E 5,954, 28 5%
TC (BT ) (FERELS (b)) BAE A A
A J SRAT A AR Z HE AT B o

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s land lease (b) N_FE—ANET+HA=Z=+—H » KEFHZ
prepayments with carrying amounts of US$43,246,000 (2015: 5T WA L b A B 2 MR i A 4,324.68
US$11,723,000) (note 17) were pledged as security for bank FEX(ZFE—HE D 1,17238Fx0) (st
borrowings of the Group. 17) T % AR S 18 SR AT A% 3k Z AR 3 5 o
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings of the Group are (c) A E 2 ST IR IR A P& AR
denominated in the following currencies: YA
2016 2015
BN RN
US$’000 US$’000
B/ abn FEL T
US$ e 789,811 587,496
VND R S 229,695 376,392
RMB ANRHE 260,720 139,182
1,280,226 1,103,070
As at 31 December 2016, none of the covenants relating to R-F—-ANEF_HA=+—H  BEER
bank borrowings had been breached (2015: nil). AL 4 B SRAT RS sk MY 35k (B — 4R
) -
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current portion of long- (d) N FE—NETH=1+—H > XEHE

term bank borrowings amounted to US$66,057,000 (2015:
US$138,078,000).
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Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANFET_H=1—HILFEE
CORPORATE BOND TEEH

2016 2015
RN e Sk K
US$’000 US$’000
B an FILFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January A—H—HZIEHE - -
Additions B 144,842 -

Interest expense (note 8) B 2 (K ES) 768
Exchange realignment THE 563 % (2,224) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ ZHA=+—HZRmEH 143,386 -

On 6 January 2016, the Group received approval from the
China Securities Regulatory Commission for the application of
CTI for the proposed issuance of domestic corporate bonds of
up to RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$305,806,000) (the
“Corporate Bond”). The Corporate Bond was proposed to be
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. UBS Securities Co.,
Ltd. and Goldstate Securities Co., Ltd. would act as the lead
underwriters. CTI received an “AA” rating from Zhong Cheng
Xin Credit Rating Co., Ltd., a credit rating agency towards
CTI and the Corporate Bond. CTI intends to use the proceeds
from the issuance of the Corporate Bond for repayment of
loans from financial institutions and replenishment of working

capital.

On 11 November 2016, the book-building exercise for the
issuance of the first tranche of the Corporate Bond with
a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
US$146,305,000) (the “First Tranche of the Corporate Bond”)
was completed; and on 29 November 2016, the First Tranche
Corporate Bond was issued and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. After deducting the issuance costs, the Group
received a net proceed of RMB990,000,000 (equivalent to
US$144,842,000) from the issuance.

The coupon rate of the First Tranche Corporate Bond was
fixed at 3.69% per annum. The maturity of the First Tranche
Corporate Bond shall be 5 years, with CTI’s right to adjust
the coupon rate and a right of redemption exercisable by the

holders at the end of the first three-year period.
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ZTJuH s HE A EMAHR OB i
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33 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 33 HMERBAME
2016 2015
SN SR T
US$’000 US$’000
FEFic FEoL L
Provision for severance allowance T B T 1,038 5,827
Non-current portion of deferred income JEI B ER A B B AE UL A 23,058 19,716
24,096 25,543
34 DEFERRED TAX 34 EEFHIE
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the A 45 ] B B IR DL R R 2 BRI R
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: HE R/ (AW :
2016 2015
SEE E
US$’000 US$’000
FEFic FILFIT
Deferred tax assets R B TE 3,907 4,411
Deferred tax liabilities I AE B IE B & (61,626) (55,333)
(57,719) (50,922)
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B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

34 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34 EEHIE(E)
The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and AR AREEBZIRERIBEEE,RARZ Z
liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: BE :
Revaluation
of properties, Losses
plant and Depreciation available
machinery in excess for offsetting Net
and  Revaluation of related future Dividend deferred tax
intangible  of biological ~ depreciation taxable  withholding assets/
assets assets allowance profits tax Others  (liabilities)
LIE JEER TR MR s
Wi R i & 4 AHHE ERRAEZ 13} TR B
WEEEEN O EEGN  WEDHEE  TEHER SRR R BE/ (A
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Erfrn  FEnfx  FEnfx  FExfx  FEnfr Exfx Fafa
At 1 January 2016 REZ-RE—=—H (18,888)  (14,463) 1,675 3,032 (20,707) (1571 (50,922)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERRER N/
profit or loss during the year () ZIBRERIE
(note 12) (HiE12) 473 5,664 177 474 (8,395) (4,893) (6,500)
Deferred tax charged to equity ER R R
during the year RILRE (790) - - - - - (790)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) WM B AT (HE38) (362) - - - - - (362)
Exchange realignment i 902 130 (24) (174) - 21 855
At 31 December 2016 REB—RAE
+ZA=+—H (18,665) (8,669) 1,828 3,332 (29,102) (6,443) (57,719)
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B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2016 BRE T —XN4ETH =+ —H L4 )%
34 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34 EXZEFIE (F)
Revaluation
of properties, Losses
plant and Depreciation available
machinery in excess for offsetting Net
and  Revaluation of related future Dividend deferred tax
intangible  of biological ~ depreciation taxable  withholding assets/
assets assets allowance profits tax Others  (liabilities)
ES TEER RER
W BB A5 C2] AHHE ERsAE [13:) FEERE
mEgERS  BEEE O FEORE  TERER D96 e &E/ ()
US§000 US$000 US$000 US§000 US$'000 US§'000 US$000
Erifr  FErfr  Fifr  Eifr Fifr Eifr Eifr
At 1 January 2015 REZ—HE—~H—H (19,221) (14,365) 1,891 3,004 (13,952) (3,422) (46,065)
Continuing operations REREER

Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERRER RN/
to profit or loss during the year () Z ERLALIE

(note 12) (Wzk12) 180 (754) (135) 143 (8,883) 1,677 (1,112)
Deferred tax charged to equity during £ RRHER B
the year B (478) - - - - - (478)
Exchange realignment JEE 3o 031 056 (81) (115) - 17 1,108
Discontinued operations REIR e
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AR R/
to profit or loss during the period (k) Z ERLAIE - - - - 76 (317 (241)
Distribution in specie (note 39) EWR (FaE39) - - - - 2,052 474 2526
At 31 December 2015 Rk
+ZA=Zt—H (18,888) (14,463) 1,675 3,032 (20,707) (1,51) (50,922)
Notes: Mt -
(a) The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will (a) A5 [ 7% v ] K e D AR 1K 81 AR 2k ME R G 36k 1
expire within five years for offsetting against future taxable Z B e O R AR B o
profits.
At 31 December 2016, deferred tax assets have not been R_F—-ANE+_A=+—H > BHAZ%
recognised in respect of unused tax losses of US$76,241,000 A B B B A DAL I AR R Ay
(2015: US$65,685,000) as it is not considered probable that HE A8 0 JE R W B G 4R 57,624 1 8 K0
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses (ZFR—HAE 6,568 58 FI0) » EZESE
can be utilised. Out of this amount, unrecognised tax losses DAY » 7 v R K e 2 Y R T R 2 B
of US$76,241,000 (2015: US$65,685,000) arose in mainland R 57,624 183550 (—F—H4 1 6,568.5
China which will expire within five years from the end of the HISET0) o 7% 5 R W e R 2 B s TE N R
reporting period. A R R AR N B o
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Year ended 31 December 2016 & E _F—N4E+_H=+—HIL4EE

34 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on any
dividends distributable by the subsidiaries established in
mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2016, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$433,459,000 (2015:
US$339,353,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$43,345,000
(2015: US$33,935,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

34

i FE B E (4])

Wit - (4F)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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KR B B o

W —ANETZHA=Z+—H > ARG
2 ] A4 IR T TG A T 5 e 3R S B I
PR B 25 B R 4083,345. 98 KL (=R — 1
AR 383,935,383 IC0) © 4,334.58 350 (2
F— I 339358 % 00) ZH B 4 Ik
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35

b#% EH B & R 2 A

SHARE CAPITAL 35 R
Shares % 4
2016 2015
ZE A R4
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve i FILFIT
Authorised WE
Onrdinary shares: AR
36,000,000,000 shares 36,000,000,000/8
(2015: 36,000,000,000 shares) —E A
of US$0.01 each 36,000,000,000J8 )
9 B i {0.0135 78 360,000 360,000
Conwertible preference shares: A PR S -
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares AZ | - 20,000,000,000/%
(2015: 20,000,000,000 shares) —E A
of US$0.01 each 20,000,000,000/% )
9 B i {0.0135 78 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares B% %1 — 4,000,000,000%
(2015: 4,000,000,000 shares) (ZF—H4E
of US$0.01 each 4,000,000,000/% )
1 B i 60.0136 8 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid C¥fT RS
Ordinary shares: AR
24,071,837,232 shares 24,071,837,232 )1
(2015: 24,071,837,232 shares) (ZF— T4 :
of US$0.01 each 24,071,837,232)%)
B i H0.0136 T 240,718 240,718
Conwertible preference shares: A R SR
Series B — 1,261,077,748 shares B& %] - 1,261,077,748%
(2015: 1,261,077,748 shares) (ZF— T4 :
of US$0.01 each 1,261,077,748/%)
B i H0.0136 T 12,611 12,611
253,329 253,329
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

There is no movement in the Company’s issued ordinary shares
and convertible preference shares during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Convertible preference shares

The convertible preference shares are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the
same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.
Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote
in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s
residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the

Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the issue price of
all the convertible preference shares held by them

respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the shares
held by them respectively; and

(iii)  the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to

and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the

holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled to
participate in such assets, by reference to the aggregate

nominal amounts of shares held by them respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.
Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 36 to the

financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

35

A ()

REEZF-ANFERF-LETZA
=t HIRFE N AN F OB AT R R
T 5 5T B Sl 40 4 )

RRE KR

A 485 B SR P T A g ol AR 2 ) A e % T
BB R AN W A Z R o T R e
JBE 77 JB R v N S B SR o AV R IRF 0 AR
A B R 3 LR KT 4 BE AR A v R T B B
4> s

(i) TR EERZHFEEAN (KEZH
WAL AH ) 2S5 B RE Z W%
Jie £ S 0% Y 1 48 3 A AR S5 A S A
B R 2 29 T 40 B 48 S It 3 AT (E A
W2 EH

(i) %55 B R 2 A5 I 2 [ 45 Aor i ¥t i)
ARy W) M AR v AT ] S0 e (T 45 M
18 506 e M JHEMEE 22 B IR % 55 A 2 AT
il By BRAM) Z #5H N (2 A% A
Fe A Z B vl AR A1) T A MR 5 R

% S AR T A BRI S I 3% [ 4
iAo e 3 i A ] 030 By (45 T 44
e 5 s B AEL A 0 456 JEE A 22 B R % 5
HE AL B ) Z 78 A (2 5%
#H A Z A HALALHD) T PR -

(iii)

Aoy W) SRR AN A R 3T 48 B S PR AR
Ie] i o

fBIE

TR 7 2 ) G PR T ) e % N T R 2 A O
W] > LB T T R Z PR RE36

2 - XN F F R

177



178

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #& £ _F— A4+ _H=+—HILEE

36

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“2002 Share
Option Scheme”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors of the Company approved the Company to
terminate the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new
share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) in place of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which will remain in force
for a period of ten years from that date. Upon termination, no
further options will be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. However, the rules of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
will remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any option granted prior to its
termination, or otherwise to the extent as may be required
in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. All options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to its termination will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme is operated for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees of
the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the

Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

B AR

A

36
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not

later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had no share

options outstanding.

There was no grant of share options during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

RESERVES

(a) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.
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37

38

RESERVES (continued) 37

(b)  The merger reserve represents the excess of the total
of the consideration transferred for the acquisition
of subsidiaries through business combinations under
common control and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interest over the carrying amount of the
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and pre-acquisition
reserves combined by the Group.

(c) The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
office premises held for own use set out in note 2.4(g).

(d) The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the PRC Companies Law or the Law
of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and
Foreign Investment as applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. None of the
Group’s PRC reserve funds as at 31 December 2016 and
2015 were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

(e) The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

2.4(aa).

BUSINESS COMBINATION 38

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired
the following businesses:

(i) 100% interest of Hubei Chia Tai from Chia Tai Food
Investment Company Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CPG) with a consideration of

US$15,950,000.

(ii) 70% interest of Fujian Chia Tai (previous name:
Fujian Sumpo Foods Holding Co., Ltd.) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Fujian CT Group”) from
Sumpo International Holdings Limited and Longyan
Huiren Investment Co., Ltd. with a consideration of
RMB322,665,000 (equivalent to US$47,207,000).

Hebei Chia Tai and Fujian CT Group are principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of animal feed and chicken meat
products in the PRC. Both considerations for the acquisitions
were fully settled during the year.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

subsidiaries acquired through business combination during the
year as at the date of acquisition are set out as follows:
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38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38 EBEO(E)
Hubei Fujian
Chia Tai CT Group Total
BHLIE R IR 4 fat
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wik FIL T E FIL T
Property, plant and equipment W - RE S 15 81,068 50,194 131,262
Land lease prepayments AT LA S 17 21,636 8,156 29,792
Other non-current assets FHoAth IR B A 53 4,400 4,453
Inventories 7E 8,649 10,276 18,925
Current biological assets WY EE 18 3,601 3,188 6,789
Trade receivables JRE W B 5 Wk 17,722 7,275 24,997
Prepayments, deposits and MR ~ &Rk
other receivables JHC A JE W SRk 1,848 43,916 45,764
Cash and cash equivalents B& RB&SEY 13,320 595 13,915
Trade payables JEAT B2 5 MRk (4,242) (10,541) (14,783)
Other payables and accruals Al A MR R I
ik S il (20,626) (13,685) (34,311)
Bank borrowings SRATRE K (107,381) (36,533) (143,914)
Deferred tax liabilities 78 41 A58 0 £ £ 34 (53) (309) (362)
15,595 66,932 82,527
Non-controlling interest 4 il e A 2 - (20,080) (20,080)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EE A A
ZHE 15,595 46,852 62,447
Exchange realignment fEE 56 3 4 355 355 710
Satisfied by cash VLB 45 S A 15,950 47,207 63,157
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

—®% - A% FH

181



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N 4 B A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E R —ANFE T H =+ —H ILFJE
38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38 EKEH(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of HHRWOEMREAR MBI SRESTNT ¢

subsidiaries is as follows:

Hubei Fujian
Chia Tai CT Group Total
WALIER  f R IE R M Hat
US$’°000 US$’°000 US$’°000

FL T L T LT

Cash consideration HEeRE 15,950 47,207 63,157
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Wl B B 4 e B4 S (13,320) (595) (13,915)

Net cash outflow included in cash flows ARG Z B &R

used in investing activities 1) B 430 R 2,630 46,612 49,242
Since the acquisitions, Hubei Chia Tai and Fujian CT PR R RE_F—AETZH=+—
Group contributed US$99,058,000 and US$16,272,000 to H ik 47 B A 4R T WA R 29,9058 56 8 K&
the Group’s revenue respectively and US$4,023,000 and 1,627. 28350 R 5 A g s M 2 402.3 #3500
US$811,000 to the consolidated net profit respectively for the B 81. 183 043 Al 9 AL 1E K Je e | E R 4R
year ended ended 31 December 2016. 4 B R o
Had the business combinations taken place at the beginning B ZEL SO mEL . RE A
of the period, the revenue from continuing operations of the ETZHE T — H kA AR AR
Group and the net profit of the Group for the year ended BT A Z WA B R R 43 i A 550
31 December 2016 would have been US$5,539,199,000 and 3,919.9#5 376 K 343,557.5 #KIT

US$335,575,000, respectively.
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39

On 29 June 2015, the Group spun-off its biochemical and

industrial businesses under CTEI via a distribution in specie.

The consolidated results of CTEI and its subsidiaries, joint

venture and associate for the period from 1 January 2015 to

29 June 2015 have been presented as Discontinued Operations

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations as follows:

ERIEREEL

ALEPZF—TAENH ZHILH LEY S
YR T7 3 7 IE R A S B B o TE i 38 1 R A
B AL K T o IE KA 36 I B e I e
AT FEEERBEEAFR R TE
H—HEZEZF-RIHFEANA ZHIUH I Z 4%
£ S A TN 4R o S o o U SR S BE A 1F
2 I ) B R C AR A B R
ZH R CK IR EEBERIIWMT -

Period from
1 January 2015 to
29 June 2015

ZR R4
—H—HZ%
A= JuB B
US$’000
FxLT T
REVENUE A 46,281
Cost of sales, other income and expenses, net S AR ~ A B 2 A (36,948)
Results from operating activities REwEEEE Z A 9,333
Income tax e (2,682)
Results from operating activities, net of tax £ 106 Bl AR 2 BB AR i A 6,651
Gain on distribution in specie of CTEI 75 10 T A3 R E K A 3 B B 2 e
— Exchange fluctuation reserve attributable to — A IE R A SE B B REAG 2
CTEI recycled to profit or loss A1 I D5 Bl fift 45 [ 4% 4 25 23,751
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 91 3 ik Al 30,402
Note: M -

Details of other financial information of the Discontinued Operations

for the period from 1 January 2015 to 29 June 2015 were set out in

2015 annual report.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 # £ - —N4E+ A=+ —HILEE
40 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40 HMEBRERERKE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions BEXFEERS
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company paid REE_FZ-HE+_HA=Z=+—HILEE
a special interim dividend by way of a distribution in specie P> AT 43 BF 15 K £ 36 1 s 58 ) 1% DA B
upon the spin-off of CTEI (note 13). P AR A Bl P BB (B 13) -
41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4 HEEE
Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group AREEFTHBARNERHRABLE =%
to financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness B 228 TE S ) % WA SR 5 AR o R 42
of independent third party customers of the Group. In the B e B 5 485 R A R I O A ) 2 i
case of financial guarantees provided which exceed the A4 ) i 2 B B B RR Y 5% A T
net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our maximum ZHEE MBEMBARNR _-E—ANE+ 2
contingent liabilities are limited to the net asset value RA=4—HZ &8 &L %8,576. 61%%17(
of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of the relevant L4 :9,100.98 FE ) - < >
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 was US$85,766,000 (2015: —NEF+FHA=Z=+—H ﬁﬁﬁ&%%ﬁ%z%ﬁ
US$91,009,000). The contingent liabilities of the Group A& 53,090.08 K50 (2 —H4 501855
in respect of such guarantees as at 31 December 2016 were FEIL) o
US$30,900,000 (2015: US$50,185,000).
42 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42 RKeEHERH
As lessor ERHEEA
The Group leases its investment properties under operating REEBERESHEZHEHHELREDE
lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated with original Pk € Z AL 25 1 205 A 56 o
terms ranging from 1 to 20 years.
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum MR-F—=ANETZHA=Z+T—H > AH =z
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with REFMET » A B R K g A BB E
its tenants falling due as follows: mE:
2016 2015
US$’OOO US$ 000
FIL T FIL T
Within one year —4ER 79 1,037
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BB HE (B ERWMAE) - 13
After five years TR - 265
79 1,315
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANFET_H=1—HILFEE
42 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42 REVELH(E)
(continued)
As lessee ERAEE
The Group leases certain of its equipment and land under AR RS E LY T &+
operating lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated with o e 2 RN A IES0EA%E -
original terms ranging from 1 to 50 years.
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum MNoFE—ANE+_H=Z1+—H » Afsiz
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling BB T » AH R 2 5 A SR B BH %
due as follows: W
2016 2015
—E®X Sk 2
US$’000 US$’000
E /e FILFIT
Within one year —ERN 44,375 39,876
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BB RHE (BB ERME) 143,423 131,103
After five years HAEDR 232,297 199,859
420,095 370,838
43 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43 BXRE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as (a) A SRR BIR 2 EARIEIT -
at the end of the reporting period:
2016 2015
2N IC S K2
US$’000 US$’000
B an FIL T
Contracted, but not provided for: CERA o (H N ARAE B -
Buildings i 38,247 86,022
Plant and machinery (note) W 55 B i 25 (B st) 33,894 52,379
72,141 138,401
Note: it -
Included in the Group’s capital commitment of plant AREHP—RZ—NETA=ZT—HBHHW
and machinery as at 31 December 2016 is an amount of TG B B 2% 2 AR AR s G & 2 332.58
US$3,325,000 (2015: US$4,375,000) contracted but not FEot (TR —HAF £ 43758 3500) BB M A
provided for to related companies. H CEA o AH AR AR R 2 G AR AR o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2016 # £ - —N4E+ A=+ —HILEE
43 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43 EREIE
(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint (b) AR AT S E R EARSENT ¢

ventures is as follows:

(c)

2016 2015

SENE SR G

US$’000 US$’000

E T abin FILFIC

Contracted, but not provided for A » B AR AE 5 - 46

The Group’s share of capital commitments of the (c) ALE H EAG TS A EAREW T ¢
associates is as follows:

2016 2015

SEAE CERE

US$’000 US$’000

E Ve FILFIT

Contracted, but not provided for LA > B ARAE 3 4,022 3,924
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2 A

B 3% 3R % M
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANFE+ _H=1+—HIL4EE
BALTHRE
B 7 B 3 840 8 = W B W b IE K 5 AR
AR ] 2 ¥ 4 A8 S A AT T 2 B A
ANEFEUTHRS ¢
2016 2015
—Z—N R ks -2
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE By FELFor
(1) 27,200 29,900
(1) 1,600 1,130
(i) 684,739 563,473
(1) 421 1,382
(ii) 14,041 13,318
(ii) 551,566 521,167
(ii) 9,641 4,660
(ii) 431 -
(iii) 1,890 2,262
(iv) 1,606 2,142
(v) 32,024 29,896
(vi) 108 3,781
(vi) 688 2,365
(vi) 27 -
(vii) 5,845 5,938

44 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 44
(a) In addition to the acquisition of Hubei Chia Tai
disclosed in note 38, the continuing operations of the
Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:
Sales of goods to: BEEMLT
Joint ventures BaEik
Associates i =g
HOEL and its related entities# HOEL J% 3 B 7 4> 3%
Itochu Corporation 7 T 2B T g bk =X Ak
(“ITOCHU”)# (ML D) #
Purchases of goods from: WMEEMA @
Joint ventures HEAek
CPT and its related entities# CPT M H B A 3=
CTEI and its subsidiaries# CTELR H: b} g 2> 7 #
ITOCHU# P b
Rental income received and FEHOEL 2 H B 2
receivable from HOEL and its FEW R Bz fl 4
related entities/ AN
Rental expenses paid and payable to JEff &k OATH & H T
HOEL and its related entities/ HOEL J% 3 B Ay 251
Technical service fee to CPG# i flg i % B 7 CPG#
Project management fee to: JHHEMEYT
Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.* IERE A B A ]+
Chia Tai Handing Engineering TE RV 5 TR A5 B
Management Co., Ltd.* HIRA T *
Di Peng Construction Consulting s TR (i)
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* A PR A ] *
Interest income on trade VR H HOEL J% H: it
receivables from HOEL and X EWE Z R
its related entities ZFBIKA

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b #® H

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE
44 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(continued)
(a) (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

Prices of goods sold to related parties were determined
with reference to the prevailing market prices of the
goods in respective local markets. The procedures to
determine the prices of products sold to related parties
are the same as those used to determine the prices
of products supplied to independent third parties
customers. The selling prices to related parties shall
be no more favourable than those made available to
the Group’s customers which are independent third

parties.

Price of goods purchased from related parties were
determined on the basis of arm’s length negotiations
taking into account the prevailing market prices in
respective local markets. The methods and procedures
to determine the prices of goods purchased from
related parties are the same as those used to determine
the prices of goods purchased from independent third
party suppliers. The purchase prices from related
parties shall be no less favourable than those made
available to the Group from suppliers which are

independent third parties.

CTEI became a related company of the Company
upon its spin-off on 29 June 2015.

The rental income comprises of (i) US$1,781,000
(2015: US$2,154,000) related to the lease and/or use
of relevant non-feed related fixed assets located in the
PRC by HOEL and its entities, which was determined
by reference to the depreciation charge of the relevant
assets and applicable tax costs incurred by the Group,
and (ii) US$109,000 (2015: US$108,000) related to
the lease of certain properties of the Group in Hong
Kong to other related companies at rates determined

by the Group with reference to market rates.

The rental expense was determined by reference
to the depreciation charge of the relevant assets
and applicable tax costs incurred by the related

companies.

B AR

n

44
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(a)

(#1)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

1 o 2 e A 4 o AR RS A
I3 B i 5 4 G R AR R o
E 1) RN 8 O 4 AR P R
Jp R RE S 1) B8 3 B = 0 A B TR Y
7 it B BT PR A — 3B o i B A
5 1 2 5 AT S 8 IR A 4 L A
TRLE =07 % P Z A%

08 I 7 N R R E AR TR
S Ji S T A B R IR A R
T 5 H T A o PR R
1) 38 72 A e A 48 8 S 5 = Ty £
JRE T R W 1 L B 5 S AR P A R
AR I 2 - R 4 AR I A 7R
TR A 45 1 T 4 8 S 5 = 5 Bt E v R
i 2 T H -

ERMEEBER - -HEANH
ZAJUH SRR A A A T Z B

R

MEWRABFE (i) BHH178.15
KL (ZF— A4 21548 % 50)
Z A B BHHOEL K o B 1B 4 S A0 1%
B/ st F A H A B e f e
FHBA 2 [ € B > JIAR IR A A 1
W B R R B BT
A B AR S > B (i) HARE
10.9# % E (ZF— L4 : 10.8H# 3%
JC) Z A B A E WA T AR
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7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

44 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(continued) :

The technical service fee was charged at 1.5% of the

net sales value of products sold by CPVC.

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of
the incurred construction cost of production facilities
of the Group’s food processing plants located at the
PRC.

The interest income was charged on trade receivable
balances due from related companies at rates
determined by the Group with reference to market

practice.

These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2016, but their size is such that the
transactions were exempt from the disclosure and
shareholders’ approval requirements for continuing

connected transactions.

These related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with joint ventures,

associates and related companies included in trade

and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other

receivables, trade payables and other payables and

accruals are disclosed in note 26(c), 27(a), 29 and

30(a) to the financial statements, respectively.
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(a)
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(vii)
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K 5
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 £ - F—XETH=1—HILFEE
44 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 44 BEANTHE (&)
(continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel who are (c) AREBHEEEMALR (FAEDSR) ZH
also directors of the Group: T -
2016 2015
A RGN
US$’000 US$’000
B FILFIT
Short term employee benefits 5910 B 1 A 3,947 4,311
45 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 45 SEIAEDE
CATEGORY
Other than the unlisted equity investments being classified as Ik 34 270 1 A A S ik 2 B 23 7 e o s T Bt
available-for-sale investments as disclosed in note 23 to the W 2z B W Ik b i E 2% B KR A i A
financial statements and the forward exchange contracts being P e R R B2 7 30 B o S A AT A Ak T
classified as derivative financial instruments as disclosed in HAEBANE SRS > R ANELE
note 27 and 30, all financial assets and liabilities of the Group —HEFZHZ+—H s KEFEZ i H 45l
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were loans and receivables B S B A0 N R R IKCER T D, B K,
and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost, respectively. ARFIRZ S H A o
46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46 HMEEBEESSHREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign 2 45 [ T SRR B~ A5 B LB - A RE R B
currency risk and liquidity risk. During the year, the Group ML B A R o R AE RN > R TE
has entered into forward exchange contracts to manage its 72 391 0 T 5 (W) DA A B L RO o L B o
exchange rates exposures.
(a) Interest rate risk (a) EBERE®
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates A £ 6] T 3 B, R B B VRO A 4
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group ZEBEHEAT o ARG B BRET >
monitors interest rate movements and determines Wb B IR BT I S T o A SR
appropriate hedging activities when necessary. The PR 6 23 5 1B i 5 | BB 4 e Bl
Group’s exposure to market risk arising from changes in 2 T 455 T it A ) A S A o
interest rates in respect of cash and cash equivalents is
considered relatively minimal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E _F—ANFET_H=1—HILFEE
46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46 BIHEBEMEES S RBCK (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) EBE=EERE)
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of PLT 2 A 45 [ A 3R 5 B K - RATA R
the Group’s bank borrowings and corporate bond as T A S A5 S A 1 3 R S oL gk s 1 R T
at the end of the reporting period that are exposed to 6> #FWF :
interest rate risk:
2016 2015
R R
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest rate amount interest rate
iR T R YR JR T R G
US$’000 % US$’000 %
E FILFIT
Fixed rate b RS 3y N i
denominated in: p=%: XA
RMB N 203,660 3.92 43,119 4.64
Floating rate FEIR R R
denominated in: Ry WAL
Us$ eI 789,811 3.94 587,496 4.30
VND L E JE 229,695 3.92 376,392 5.07
RMB NG 200,446 4.84 96,063 5.62
1,219,952 1,059,951
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N 4 BB R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2016 BRE T —XN4ETH =+ —H L4 )%
46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46 BIHEEBEMEES T RBCK (F)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) EBE=EREK(E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a T R0 R B R R ERAT A AR AE G EE R
reasonably possible change in interest rates, through BT > A H 0 B4R A R RE 2
the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the P R (b s R 5 ) -
Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other
variables held constant):
2016 2015
TR N ZR I
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) (decrease)
(decrease)  in profit after in profit after
in basis points  tax and equity  tax and equity
B Bt 12 ti A Wi ot 1% iz 1)
HE B B HE 28 B 2
W/ (@A) Hm/ EA) B ()
US$’'000 US$’000 US$’000
E i n FIL T FILFIT
US$ e 100 (7,407) (5,303)
US$ e (100) 7,407 5,303
RMB N 100 (1,503) (720)
RMB N (100) 1,503 720
VND LR JE 100 (1,792) (2,936)
VND 7t 1 JE (100) 1,792 2,936
(b)  Credit risk (b) HEERR

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks and financial institutions. This cash
management policy limits the Group’s exposure to
concentration of credit risk.

192
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Year ended 31 December 2016 &R E - F—XNE+_H=Z+—HILF)¥

46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of that
industry. However, the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered relatively minimal due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. Trade
receivables of US$2,408,000 (2015: US$6,156,000)
were supported by guarantee issued by bank provided
by customers as at 31 December 2016. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 41, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in note 41. The Group
held assets of US$1,412,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: US$2,050,000) as pledge for the guarantees

granted to independent third party customers.
Foreign currency risk

RMB and VND are not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions are
conducted with reference to the exchange rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China and banks in Vietnam,
respectively. Payments for imported materials and
remittance of earnings out of mainland China and
Vietnam are subject to the availability of foreign

currencies.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B E _&F—ANE+_H=+—HILEE

46 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND respectively. Revenues and profits are thus
predominantly denominated in RMB and VND. For
certain subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
funds denominated in RMB and VND may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate against
the US$, it may increase/reduce the foreign currency
equivalent of such earnings available for distribution by
these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the

Company.

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in
mainland China and Vietnam and substantially all
transactions are conducted in RMB and VND.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a possible change in
RMB and VND exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and
equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries).
The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statement of foreign

operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

B AR

N
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46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

B35 L B B T R B ()

(c) SMERBER (&)

Appreciation/ Increase/

(depreciation) (decrease) Increase/
in RMB in profit (decrease)
or VND before tax in equity

N R o W i T o 5 i 4 4
THE/ (B2 4H) K,/ (W) B,/ (W)
US$’000 US$’000
FILFiL F i
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ—A4TZA
=t HIRgE
If US$ weakens against RMB B I 72 3% 5,899 4,424
If US$ strengthens against RMB fi £ o N R FHE (3%) (5,899) (4,424)
If US$ weakens against VND A 35 0 188 7 v Y M2 A 3% 454 354
If US$ strengthens against VND i 5 0 18 % e ) T (3%) (454) (354)
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE_Z-HETH
ZF—HILEE
If US$ weakens against RMB lES M YN A 7Z D 3% 5,103 3,876
If US$ strengthens against RMB fiSEem N\ R THE (3%) (5,103) (3,876)
If US$ weakens against VND ESIN 5 g 3% 1,285 1,002
If US$ strengthens against VND A0y 9 T 0 R G T (3%) (1,285) (1,002)
Liquidity risk d)y RBELEAK
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between A SE W H W TG 2 18 R F 4% R A Y

funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.
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46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

A H

46 Y EREE T R BUR (&)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d) #RBESLER(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities TRMAER AR ZBH A > 